
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

Committee: Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 

Date:  Tuesday 31 May 2016 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Neil Prestidge (Chairman) Councillor Jolanta Lis (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Chris Heath Councillor David Anderson 
Councillor Claire Bell Councillor Mike Bishop 
Councillor Hugo Brown Councillor Mark Cherry 
Councillor Nicholas Mawer Councillor Sandra Rhodes 
Councillor Jason Slaymaker Councillor Bryn Williams 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Members should not normally be subject to the party whip. 

Where a member is subject to a party whip they must declare this at the beginning 
of the meeting and it should be recorded in the minutes. 

 
 
1. Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members      

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest      
 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which 
they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.   
 
 

3. Urgent Business      
 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 

http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/


 

 

 
 

4. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)    
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 5 April and 17 
May 2016. 
 
 

5. Chairman's Announcements      
 
To receive communications from the Chairman. 
 
 

6. Scrutiny Briefing      
 
The Democratic and Elections Manager will brief Members on the functions and 
responsibilities of the Committee.  
 
 

7. Performance Management Framework 2015/16 Quarter 4/Year End Report  
(Pages 7 - 58)    
 
Report of Head of Transformation 
 
Purpose of report 

 
This report, together with Appendix 1 & Appendix 2, provides a summary of the 
Quarter 4/End of Year Performance of the Council’s performance in Quarter 4 as 
measured through the performance management framework.  It provides an 
opportunity for the Committee to reflect upon the performance and determine 
whether there is a need to review performance in any of the services or to refer any 
specific points to the Executive for consideration at its next meeting on 6 June 2016. 

 
Recommendations 
              
The meeting is recommended to: 
 
1.1 Note the achievements referred to in paragraph 3.2 (Table 2) note that 

despite tough performance targets, a challenging economic environment, 
and on-going policy and organisational change, Cherwell District Council has 
met or made satisfactory progress on 96% of all the performance targets 
outlined in its performance management framework. 

 
1.2 Identify any performance related matters which the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee may wish to review or refer to Executive.  
 

1.3 Note the annual draft report (Appendix 2), summarising and reflecting on the 
successes of 2015/16  

 
 

8. Committee Work Programme  (Pages 59 - 66)    
 
Report of Head of Law and Governance 



 

 

 
Purpose of report 

 
To consider the outstanding items from the 2015-2016 Overview and Scrutiny work 
programme and determine whether they should be carried forward onto the 2016-
2017 work programme 

 
Recommendations 
              
The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To decide whether to continue with the reviews started during the previous 

Municipal Year  
 

1.2 To review the draft work programme (Appendix 1). 
 

1.3 Identify any items from the Executive Work Programme to form part of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2016/17. 
 

1.4 Identify any other possible future topics for scrutiny and consider whether 
these topics should have scoping documents produced, based on the 
considerations of risk and what value scrutiny can add through considering 
the issue. 
 

1.5 To give consideration to the start time of future meetings being changed to 
6:45pm, as per the request of the Committee Chairman.  

 
 
 

Councillors are requested to collect any post from their pigeon 
hole in the Members Room at the end of the meeting. 

 
 

Information about this Meeting 
 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to 
democracy@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk or 01327 322043 prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item.  
 
Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest 
available fire exit.  Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 
 

mailto:democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


 

 

Access to Meetings 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
Mobile Phones 
 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
 
Please contact Emma Faulkner, Democratic and Elections 
emma.faulkner@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk, 01327 322043  
 
 
Sue Smith 
Chief Executive 
 
Published on Friday 20 May 2016 
 

 
 



Cherwell District Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at 
Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 5 April 2016 at 6.30 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor David Hughes (Chairman)  
 Councillor Timothy Hallchurch MBE 

Councillor Chris Heath 
Councillor Matt Johnstone 
Councillor Neil Prestidge 
Councillor Bryn Williams 
 

 
Substitute 
Members: 

Councillor James Macnamara (In place of Councillor Lynn 
Pratt) 
 

Also 
Present: 

Councillor Michael Gibbard, Lead Member for Planning 
 

 
Apologies 
for 
absence: 

Councillor Lynn Pratt 
Councillor Claire Bell 
Councillor Alastair Milne Home 
Councillor James Porter 
Councillor Sandra Rhodes 
Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
 

 
Officers: Adrian Colwell, Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy 

Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections 
Emma Faulkner, Democratic and Elections Officer 
 
 

54 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

55 Urgent Business  
 
There were no items of urgent business.  
 
 

56 Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 23 February 2016 were 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 
 
 
 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5 April 2016 

  

57 Chairman's Announcements  
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements.    
 
 

58 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2015/16  
 
The Committee considered the final draft of the Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
report for 2015/16.  
 
In connection with the Youth Engagement Review, Councillors Prestidge and 
Williams advised the Committee that they would be reviewing the way schools 
were contacted regarding the Champion scheme, to try and increase 
response and sign-up to the scheme.  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual report 2015/16 be 

approved for submission to Council. 
 

(2) That authority be delegated to the Head of Law and Governance, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
to make any minor amendments to the annual report before submission 
to Council 

 
 

59 Review of Local Plan Process  
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy attended the meeting to 
give a verbal update regarding the Local Plan process.  
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy reminded the Committee of 
the process and time taken for Part 1 of the Local Plan, before going on to 
outline the stages for Part 2A which had recently been started 
 
In response to questions from the Committee regarding the shortfall in 
housing in Oxford, the Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy advised 
that anywhere in the Cherwell District could be argued for use towards 
meeting the Oxford requirement, but it was hoped a resolution would be 
reached in the coming months. Other areas of the country experiencing 
similar issues included Birmingham and Cambridge. 
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy also advised the Committee 
that a short briefing paper would be circulated to them after the meeting, 
which summarised the key points from his update.  
 
The Committee thanked the Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy for 
the update.    
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the verbal update be noted 
 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5 April 2016 

  

 
60 Wind Turbines and their locations, and the application of the fracturing 

mining technique  
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy gave a verbal update on 
Wind Turbines and their locations.  
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy advised that the National 
Planning Policy Framework allowed the creation of acceptable ‘zones’ for 
wind turbines through the Local Plan process. This had not been undertaken 
during Part 1 of the Local Plan for Cherwell, but there would be a specific 
question on the proposal as part of the Part 2 consultation.  
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy added that a briefing note 
on the subject would be circulated after the meeting, which detailed the key 
points covered, as well as a further note regarding Fracking.  
 
The Committee thanked the Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy for 
the verbal updates given, and for the explanation of the complexities involved.   
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the verbal update be noted 
 
 

61 Work Programme 2015/16  
 
The Committee considered the work programme for the remainder of the 
Municipal Year.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Committee for their time and work during the year.  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the work programme be noted 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.50 pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 





 

 

Cherwell District Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at 
Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 17 May 2016 at 6.35 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor Neil Prestidge (Chairman)  

Councillor Jolanta Lis (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillor Chris Heath 
Councillor David Anderson 
Councillor Claire Bell 
Councillor Mike Bishop 
Councillor Hugo Brown 
Councillor Mark Cherry 
Councillor Nicholas Mawer 
Councillor Sandra Rhodes 
Councillor Jason Slaymaker 
Councillor Bryn Williams 
 
 
 
 

1 Appointment of Chairman for the Municipal Year 2016-2017  
 
Resolved 
 
That Councillor Neil Prestidge be appointed Chairman of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal Year 2016-17. 
 
 

2 Appointment of Vice-Chairman for the Municipal Year 2016-2017  
 
Resolved 
 
That Councillor Jolanta Lis be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal Year 2016-17. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.27 pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 





Cherwell District Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

31 May 2016 
 
 

Performance Report 2015-16 

Quarter 4 / End of Year 

 
Report of Head of Transformation 

 
 

This report is public 
 
 

Purpose of report 
 
This report, together with Appendix 1 & Appendix 2, provides a summary of the 
Quarter 4/End of Year Performance of the Council’s performance in Quarter 4 as 
measured through the performance management framework.  It provides an 
opportunity for the Committee to reflect upon the performance and determine 
whether there is a need to review performance in any of the services or to refer any 
specific points to the Executive for consideration at its next meeting on 6 June 2016. 

 

 
1.0 Recommendations 
              

The meeting is recommended to: 
 
1.1 Note the achievements referred to in paragraph 3.2 (Table 2) note that despite 

tough performance targets, a challenging economic environment, and on-going 
policy and organisational change, Cherwell District Council has met or made 
satisfactory progress on 96% of all the performance targets outlined in its 
performance management framework. 

 
1.2 Identify any performance related matters which the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee may wish to review or refer to Executive.  
 

1.3 Note the annual draft report (Appendix 2), summarising and reflecting on the 
successes of 2015/16  

 
 

2.0 Introduction 
 

2.1 This is a report of the Council’s performance in the fourth quarter of 2015/16 and 
covers key areas of performance against the Council’s Business Plan, incorporating 
its 12 public pledges, Corporate Equalities Plan and Partnerships. The Joint 
Management Team agreed the deletion of the Programmes report on the basis it 
duplicates information already reported in the Business Plan objectives.  
 



 
 
 

2.2 To measure performance we use a ‘traffic light’ system where Green* is exceeding 
the target, Green is 100% of the target met, Amber 90% and above, and Red below 
90% and detailed performance indicators and commentary is presented in the 
appendices to this report.  Where a measure is complete or no longer required a 
shaded box will be used. 
 

2.3 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the significant progress made in 
delivering the Council’s four strategic objectives:- 

 • District of Opportunity 
 • Safe, Green and Clean 
 • Thriving District 
 • Sound Budgets and Customer focused Council 
 

 

3.0 Report Details 
 
3.1 In 2015/16 the Council set itself challenging performance targets and is delighted to 

report that it has met, or made satisfactory progress on, 96% of all the performance 
targets set out in the Corporate Performance Management Framework including 
Equalities, Programmes and Partnership plans. 

 
 A general summary of our performance at year end, against each of our scorecards 

is outlined in the table below:- 
 
 Table 1 
 

END OF YEAR 2015/16 Summary Outturn 

No. of measures Green * Green Amber Red Total 

Performance Pledges 0 10 2 0 12 

 
  

END OF YEAR 2015/16 Summary Outturn 

No. of measures Green * Green Amber Red Total 

District of Opportunity 0 22 6 0 28 

Safe, Green and Clean 1 7 8 2 18 

Thriving District 9 31 2 0 42 

Sound budgets & Customer 
focussed Council 

1 21 3 2 27 

Corporate Business Plan 
Total (not including Pledges) 

11 91 19 4 115 

  
 
3.2  Whilst appendix 2 provides a glossy summary of the Pledges and successes for 

2015/16 and appendix 1 provides a more comprehensive analysis of our 
performance against the Business Plan, table 2 highlights some examples of where 
we have performed particularly well during quarter 4.  
 



Table 2 - Areas of performance strength relating to each of the 4 strategic 
priorities:- 
 

District of Opportunity 

Complete Bicester Town Centre regeneration including the Council's commercial 
Community Building 

  
Practical completion achieved on 29 March 2016 and building opened on 4 April 
2016.  The project was delivered within budget and work continues on marketing 
the space available on the second and ground floor. 

Support business growth, skills & employment in local companies & the visitor 
economy to strengthen the economy of the District 

  

36 detailed business enquiries served in Q4, including inward investors from UK 
and overseas, expanding indigenous companies and businesses seeking advice 
and information.  A wide range of projects and services are being developed and 
provided including:    

 Provision of one-to-one advice to local residents starting their own 
businesses through active partnership and hosting a venue for Oxfordshire 
Business Enterprises services 

 Development of 'sector propositions' with Local Enterprise Partnerships to 
support the expansion of key clusters of Cherwell's economy such as 
performance engineering, bio-science, space technology, construction and 
logistics 

 Support for the development of the Bicester Eco-Business Centre, Pioneer 
Square and Graven Hill business investment opportunities 

 Attraction of businesses into Pioneer Square and Franklin House units and 
collaboration with Oxfordshire County Council to relocate the Bicester Job 
Club to the new library from April 

 

Safe, Green and Clean 

Deliver an additional 1,000 blue recycling bins this year 

  
Target significantly exceeded full year due in part to publicity campaigns, 
reduction in the price of Blue Bins in conjunction with Blitz events and specific bin 
sale in December, all of which proved popular. 

Undertake 6 neighbourhood blitzes with community involvement 

  

All of the six planned Neighbourhood Blitz events have been completed.  They all 
proved to be very popular with members of the public and Councillors alike.  We 
have also recently supported Banbury Town Council in the "Clean for the Queen" 
initiatives, which involved our staff, members of the public, and local Councillors. 

  

Thriving District 

Average time to process change in circumstances (days) 

  

Processing of changes of circumstances has remained well within target due to 
the impact of ATLAS automation.  43,617 changes in circumstances were 
actioned this year compared with 39,081 last year.   

An exceptional full year performance of 3.16 days which compares favourably 
with 4.17 days in 2014/15. 



Average time taken to process new claims and changes for Housing Benefit (days) 

  

A good improvement in performance during Q4 and comfortably within target for 
the period and also full year; it is expected this level of performance will be 
maintained in the coming year.  

This year's full year performance of 3.56 days reflected a good improvement over 
5.75 days achieved in 2014/15.   

  

Sound Budgets and Customer Focussed Council 

Make successful bids for external funding 

  The Business Support Unit has been considering the options for accessing 
external funding opportunities, including using external funding databases to 
support this process. The Grants Officer has investigated the options and a 
decision has been made on a preferred supplier to support this process.  Once we 
go live with the product in the first quarter of 2016-2017, we will be able to advise, 
support and encourage the bid process in order to enable the organisation to 
make successful bids for external funding. 

Percentage of council tax collected 

  As expected the change to paying by 12 monthly instalments means that 
collection rates have recovered in the final quarter of the year with 98.65% 
collection vs a target of 98.25%. 

Percentage of NNDR collected 

  Collection targets have been met (98.96% vs a target of 98.5%) due to proactive 
work by the Service Assurance and Customer Service teams in cooperation with 
Capita's staff.  The collection rate would have been even higher but for a number 
of large units entering the list just before the end of the financial year. 

 
 

 

4.0 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 
 
4.1 In this final quarter and year-end report we show that the Council has made strong 

progress towards delivering its ambitions to improve the services delivered to the 
public and against key projects and priorities, despite tough performance targets, a 
challenging economic environment, and on-going policy and organisational change. 

 
4.2 With a 96% delivery rate against the key strategic priorities and the deliverables that 

sit underneath them, the report clearly demonstrates that the council’s performance 
is excellent, and that together we are making a significant and positive difference to 
the District, our residents, businesses and other key stakeholders.  There can be no 
other recommendations to make, other than to commend everyone who has 
contributed to such excellent performance, of which we should all be proud. 

  
 Notwithstanding this excellent performance, as is usual, the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee is invited to review the performance report of all council services and 
can make reports or recommendations to Executive and/or Council.  Any feedback 
from this Committee will be fed back to The Leader of the Council. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

5.0 Consultation 
 
5.1 As part of the Council’s engaging and comprehensive approach to performance 

management, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to review the 
Council’s performance on a quarterly basis and to provide any feedback to the 
Executive.  

 
5.2 No specific consultation on this report is required. However, it should be noted that 

several indicators are based on public consultation or customer feedback.   
  

  

6.0 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
6.1 The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons 

as set out below.  
 

Option 1: Note the report  
 
Option 2: Request additional information on items and/or add to the work 
programme for review and/or refer to Executive. 
 

 

7.0 Implications 
 
 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
7.1 Financial Effects – The resource required to operate the performance management 

framework is contained within existing budgets. However the information presented 
may lead to decisions that have financial implications. These will be viewed in the 
context of the Medium Term Plan and Financial Strategy and the annual Service 
and Financial Planning process. 

 
 Comments checked by: 

Paul Sutton - Head of Finance and Procurement 
03000 030106  Paul.Sutton@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

 
 

Legal Implications 
 
7.2 There are no legal issues arising from this report. 
 
 Comments checked by: 

Kevin Lane, Head of Law and Governance 
0300 0030107 Kevin.lane@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  
 
 
Risk Implications  

  
7.3 The purpose of the performance management framework is to enable the Council to 

deliver its strategic objectives.  All managers are required to identify and manage 
the risks associated with achieving this.  All risks are logged on the Risk Register 
and reported quarterly to the Accounts, Audit & Risk Committee (AA&RC).   

 

mailto:Paul.Sutton@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:Kevin.lane@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk


Comments checked by: 
Louise Tustian – Senior Performance & Improvement Officer 
01295 221786   Louise.tustian2@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  
  
 
Data Quality  

  

7.4 Data for performance against all indicators has been collected and calculated using 
agreed methodologies drawn up by accountable officers. The Council’s 
performance management software has been used to gather and report 
performance data in line with performance reporting procedures. 

 
Comments checked by: 
Ros Holloway - Performance Information Officer 
01295 221578 Ros.Holloway@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  

 

 
8.0 Decision Information 

 
Wards Affected 
All 
 
Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework 

 
The Performance Management Framework covers all of the Council’s Strategic 
Priorities and Pledges 
 

 Lead Councillor 
 

Councillor Barry Wood 
Leader of the Council  

 

Document Information 

Appendix No Title 

1 Business Plan (Performance data tables) 

2 Annual Report 2015/16 - draft 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Ed Bailey – Corporate Performance & Insight Manager  

Contact Information 
01295 221605   

Edward.Bailey@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  

 

mailto:Louise.tustian2@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:Ros.Holloway@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:Edward.Bailey@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk


Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

CBP1 1.1

Deliver a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), Bicester, 

Banbury Town and Kidlington Masterplans & 

Supplementary Planning Documents for strategic sites to 

guide investment

G G 
Consultations on CIL assessment and Kidlington & Banbury Masterplans are underway.  

The Supplementary Planning Document for NW Bicester has been adopted.

CBP1 2.1

Pledge

Make progress onsite for the initial housing development 

at North West Bicester 

G G 

The first phase of development at NW Bicester, known as Elmsbrook, is nearing 

completion and is due for first occupations next quarter. The phase includes a mix of 

housing including flats, terrace, semi detached and detached houses. The houses are a 

mix of tenures with affordable rented properties, shared ownership and market sale 

properties. In addition to housing the first primary school is under construction and 

planning permission has been resolved to be granted for the local centre to serve the 

development.  The development is achieving true zero carbon and very high standards of 

sustainability as required by the Local Plan policy Bic 1. 

Following completion of the first phase of the Elmsbrook development construction is due 

to commence on the second phase.

CBP1 2.2
Deliver the Eco – Bicester Business Centre in North 

West Bicester
G G 

Soft market testing has been undertaken with business centre operators to inform the 

project. Delivery and procurement options have been explored with a view to reporting to 

the Project Board by the end of April 2016. This will inform the next report to the Executive.

CBP1 2.3
Facilitate the 5 applications for the Northwest 

Bicester site
A A 

Three planning applications for 3,500 dwellings and key road infrastructure have been 

reported to the Council's Planning Committee and have resolutions to grant planning 

permission subject to the completion of legal agreements.  Two further applications for 

1,850 dwellings and 53,000m2 of employment space have also been reported to 

committee and deferred.  These applications are likely to be reported back to the Planning 

Committee during the next quarter for determination.

CBP1 2.4
Complete Bicester Town Centre regeneration including 

the Council's commercial Community Building
G G 

Practical completion achieved on 29 March 2016 and building opened on 4 April 2016.  

The project was delivered within budget and work continues on marketing the space 

available on the second and ground floor.

Cherwell District Council Business Plan : 2015/2016

A District  of Opportunity - Quarter 4

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

Implement the Cherwell Local Plan as framework for sustainable housing, new employment & infrastructure investments over the next 20 years

Complete and implement the Masterplan for Bicester helping to provide new housing, jobs & leisure opportunities



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP1 2.5

Pledge

Make progress on site for the initial infrastructure at 

Graven Hill and promotion of the self-build plots

A A 

New Managing Director was appointed in January 2016 as we now push towards the 

implementation phase.  Infrastructure work has commenced on the demonstrator project.  

The first self builders are due on site in June 2016 and phase 1A plots due for release in 

Summer 2016.

CBP1 2.5a Deliver the demonstration project on the Graven Hill site G A 
Project progressing well.  Ten plots allocated and on track for a June 2016 start on site 

once the foundations have been completed.

CBP1 2.5b
Set up a sales and marketing suite to promote the plots 

at Graven Hill
A A 

The Graven Hill Board will consider a report at the April 2016 board meeting regarding the 

design proposals for the sales suite/village square promotion area.

CBP1 2.5c Appoint an infrastructure contractor for Graven Hill >> G 

Careys, (infrastructure provider) have been appointed to deliver the initial infrastructure 

required to access the Graven Hill Pioneer plots from the main entrance of the site. They 

will also deliver the golden brick for each of the 10 plots.

CBP1 2.6
Deliver the SW Bicester Phase 2

(Sports Pavilion and 3G pitch)
A A 

Initial procurement process resulted in only one tender submission which was not 

considered to be value for money. The Executive Committee agreed to re-tender the 

construction contract to a national market in order to try and get a more competitive 

tender.

CBP1 3.1

Pledge

Commission and complete a commercial appraisal for 

Banbury town centre, and subsequently bring forward 

appropriate redevelopment proposals for urgent 

consideration

G G 

Business Improvement District bid:  The tender to undertake the BID study, the essential 

first stage to creating a BID has been let and responses are awaited.  The option of a BID 

has been discussed with the Chamber of Commerce and is referred to in the draft Banbury 

Masterplan.

 

Banbury Vision and Masterplan progress:  The draft Masterplan has been published and 

completed its four week consultation.  Responses are being compiled and assessed, with 

a view to considering what changes may be required to the draft Masterplan.  The final 

Supplementary Planning Document is to be considered at Executive in July and adopted.

 

Hella Site:  A viability assessment has been commissioned and completed.  Officers have 

considered the report and have asked that the Canalside site phasing plan is completed to 

enable the Hella report to be considered in relation to how it might assist the relocation of 

companies from Canalside and so enable development land to become available at 

Canalside in a phased way.

Complete and implement the Masterplan for Banbury helping to provide retail, employment and town centre development opportunities



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP1 3.2
Prepare a scheme for the redevelopment of the Bolton 

Road site
G A 

Draft report received but further survey work needed on the car park structure before a 

final recommendation can be made.  To be reviewed at the May Board meeting.

CBP1 3.3

Take steps to develop a Masterplan for the 

redevelopment of Canalside within Banbury Town 

Centre redevelopment

G G 
The Canalside site phasing plan is being worked on and this will inform the drafting of the 

Supplementary Planning Document for Canalside.

CBP1 3.4 Develop a car parking strategy for Banbury Town G G 

A car parking strategy for Banbury will be influenced by a review of all the Council's car 

parking services which has recently commenced and will be completed by the end of the 

first half of 2016/17.

CBP1 3.5

Secure a start on site by the developer subject to the 

detailed development agreement being completed, and 

maximise the Council’s income and returns from Castle 

Quay and Castle Quay 2

G G 

Negotiations continue with Aberdeen investments around a potential scheme for Castle 

Quay 2 and we will update when further progress has been made.

CBP1 3.6

Extension and improvement of Woodgreen Leisure 

centre as a better facility for the town (including 

procurement of new contract arrangements including dry 

side facilities)

G G 

Stakeholder presentations, displays and meetings completed during February and March.  

Contract documents currently being finalised.  Executive  on 4 April 2016 approved 

delegated powers to award contract late April subject to the Alcatel period (this is a 10 day 

procurement stand-still period).  

Project is on target for 1 May 2016 Contract commencement.

CBP1 3.7 Review future arts provision G G 

Progress has been made in working with the Mill and Banbury Museum to refine their 

capital development plans.  From 1 April 2016 the Mill will operate as a new independent 

Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO).  The Masterplan has been received by both 

organisations and they will respond outlining their ambitions for growth to match the 

increasing importance of Banbury as a Market Town of significant size.

Strategic development sites have been identified for the inclusion of public art and 

progress has been made on these and on commercial development sites, such as 

Banbury Gateway and Central M40 too.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP1 4.1

Pledge

Complete and implement the Masterplan for Kidlington, 

helping to develop a strong village centre

G G 

CBP1 4.2
Agree next steps for development options for Kidlington 

against agreed timescales & milestones
G G 

CBP1 4.3

Establish new management arrangements for Stratfield 

Brake Sports Ground on behalf of Kidlington Parish 

Council 

A G 

Kidlington and Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Councils have made the decision to go 

out to the market for an operator. 

Project documents are currently being drawn up with a view of procurement 

commencement during late May 2016.

CBP1 5.1

Support business growth, skills & employment in local 

companies & the visitor economy to strengthen the 

economy of the District

G G 

36 detailed business enquiries served in Q4, including inward investors from UK and 

overseas, expanding indigenous companies and businesses seeking advice and 

information.  A wide range of projects and services are being developed and provided 

including:   

Provision of one-to-one advice to local residents starting their own businesses 

through active partnership and hosting a venue for Oxfordshire Business Enterprises 

services

Development of 'sector propositions' with Local Enterprise Partnerships to support the 

expansion of key clusters of Cherwell's economy such as performance engineering, bio-

science, space technology, construction and logistics;

Development of services with Experience Oxfordshire to promote the visitor economy in 

Cherwell;

Support for the development of the Bicester Eco-Business Centre, Pioneer Square and 

Graven Hill business investment opportunities;  

Attraction of businesses into Pioneer Square and Franklin House units and collaboration 

with Oxfordshire County Council to relocate the Bicester Job Club to the new library from 

April;

Representing the interests of north Oxfordshire in the EU-funded LEADER rural business 

development programme seeking to develop skills and investment in the community; 

Support and guidance to emerging EU programme operators to provide practical support 

to tackle long term unemployment;  

Meetings with businesses at their premises to support their growth and/or local 

relocation, including recruitment and apprenticeships.

CBP1 .5 : Promote inward investment and support business growth within the District

Complete and implement the Masterplan for Kidlington, helping to develop a strong village centre afforded by its location.

Consultation is underway on the Kidlington Masterplan.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP1 5.1

continued

continued …

Support business growth, skills & employment in local 

companies & the visitor economy to strengthen the 

economy of the District

G G 

Contributions to emerging Masterplans and policies to ensure business and employment 

matters to add detail and market intelligence to the Local Plan and future inward 

investment services to businesses;

Practical assistance and advice given to the Bicester Technology Studio (School) 

towards the opening of this key facility in September 2016 to nurture construction and 

business skills;

Active involvement with the Beaumont Road Industrial Estate Group and preparations for 

the Wildmere Group to address operational issues and develop the capacity of businesses 

alongside the vitality of the estates;

A public meeting held with businesses and Stagecoach to establish how public transport 

services can be extended to new employment areas in Banbury:   

Regular meetings with the local Chambers of Commerce;

Continuation of the Banbury Town Team Co-ordination project, including the 

development of Banbury Presents activity.  The Co-ordinators have also provided  

practical help to traders to enhance their business and assisted CDC to reassess its 

licensing and regulation services to be more 'customer friendly'. The number of vacant 

units has reduced to 33 (7%);

Preparation for the second phase of support for the vitality of central Bicester: 

establishment of an advice service to retailers and commissioning cost-effective and high 

quality public Wi-Fi coverage and Participation in the Organisational Awareness Days to 

ensure that the regulatory services of CDC are more effectively providing for the needs of 

businesses.

CBP1 5.2

Continue to use the Cherwell Investment Partnership 

(CHIP) as a hub for inward investment and ensuring 

sufficient business sites and employment land are 

available to meet the needs of the District

G G 

Provision of responsive, high quality services to respond to business needs and promote 

the district for commercial investment continues through the Cherwell Investment 

Partnership.  The results of CHIP work often take years to be realised but since it was 

established in 1991 by the Council and businesses, it has operated continuously to attract 

and retain the many businesses that are in Cherwell today.  CHIP ensures that the skills 

and services of commercial estate agents developers, recruitment companies, 

professional services and public bodies are aligned to provide practical help and strategic 

planning to support the economy through investment and job creation.   

 

Promotion of key sites and premises through www.cherwell-m40.co.uk ensures that the 

Council as the Planning Authority also provides practical help and support for business 

growth.

 

In recent years, Oxfordshire Investment Partnership has been formed to develop 

additional strategic services with the active assistance of CDC/CHIP, including the sharing 

of a database of enquiries to provide efficient 'joined up' professional help to clients.  This 

local co-operation also attracts the support of Government services on inward investment 

and exporting, through UK Trade and Investment (UKTI) to be most effectively provided to 

Cherwell's businesses.  



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP1 5.3
Produce marketing material to promote commercial & 

industrial business sites and the area
G G 

Guides produced for 'Local Business Contacts' and 'Employment Support for Businesses'.    

CDC has gained sponsorship by local businesses to produce a comprehensive 'Cherwell 

Business Guide', incorporating a business-to-business directory and social media links, to 

promote local supply chains and the district as a location for business investment - 

publication and on-line in Summer 2016.  Regular e-newsletters 'Business Moves' is sent 

to the mailing list of businesses and partners every other month, providing news of 

opportunities and support for growth locally.  Press releases issued on job fairs and town 

centre vitality work.

CBP1 6.1
Build on the Council’s ‘Better Business’ approach to 

support new and existing businesses
G G 

It has been a great year for Better Business.  Approximately 200 staff attended four 

Organisational Awareness Days across Cherwell and South Northamptonshire which 

provided an opportunity for staff to experience what it felt like to be a start up business in 

our district and to shape how our services assist.  88% of delegates agreed that the 

workshops met a number of objectives including ensuring that services recognise and 

understand that they need to work together as a whole Council to support our businesses.  

Our programme with South East Midlands Local Enterprise Partnership (SEMLEP) 

continues with a regulators workshops and a work programme which will include working 

with businesses to find out what the barriers are.  We held workshops in Banbury with 

local businesses earlier in the year and developed a funded single regulatory point of 

contact based on feedback from businesses.  We have extended this project as it is 

showing early signs of success which will add value to the final evaluation.  

The new Public Protection shared service is structured to optimise business support and 

will be implemented fully in 2016-17.  We have launched our Licensing pre-application 

service so that businesses can take advantage of skilled professional support when 

applying for licences.

CBP1 6.2

Work proactively with developers on both planning 

applications and pre-application enquiries to enable the 

speedy delivery of new commercial projects 

G G 

A Development Management team approach continues to facilitate the delivery of new 

commercial development.  The use of Planning Performance Agreements (PPAs) is 

continuing and provides certainty to the developer in terms of the provision of pre-

application advice and the timely consideration of future planning applications.  The use of 

PPAs also allows the Council to generate additional income to deliver against the agreed 

timeframe.

CBP1.6 : Deliver high quality regulatory services that support the growth of the local economy



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP1 6.3
Identify the blockages to development and investigate a 

range of solutions, in consultation with planning agents 
G G 

The Development Management team approach and use of Planning Performance 

Agreements (PPAs) is a direct solution to address concerns that have been raised by 

developers.  

Agent and Developer Forums have been arranged during the course of May and will 

further develop the relationship between Development Management and agents to ensure 

that the service delivery meets their expectations.  One developer forum is taking place 

with volume house builders focussing on delivery and a second taking place with regular 

architects and agents focussing on the benefits of pre-application engagement and how 

this can deliver timely planning permission.  

The Business Process Re-engineering (BPR) programme continues to identify clear 

improvements to process and these have started to be introduced. The programme will 

continue in the next financial year and will assist Development Management in working 

efficiently and effectively, ensuring the delivery of timely decision making.

CBP1 6.4 Provide high quality responsive regulatory services G G 

Our new shared Regulators Forum has developed a work plan to ensure that all of our 

regulators are consistent and to further support and deliver the Better Business 

programme.  The forum brings together all of our regulatory services and legal 

representation so that we can ensure that out policies are business friendly, are trained 

competent and that we are maximising our resources efficiently.  We continue to develop 

our Primary Authority services alongside our successful flagship partnership with 

Sainsburys.

CBP1 6.5
Embed the Regulatory Code and Corporate 

Enforcement Policy
G G 

The Regulators Forum has reviewed and amended all policies to ensure that they can be 

cross referenced with the corporate enforcement policy.   A new Council regulators 

commitment has been developed in preparation for publishing in 2016-17.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

CBP2 1.1

Pledge 

Maintain the District's high household 

recycling rate  

A

Actual 54.44%

Target 57.00%

R

Actual 49.26%

Target 57.00%

provisional



A

Actual 55.78%

Target 57.00%

provisional

Although some recovery has been seen in the amount of garden waste collected 

this quarter, overall we are down on composting for this year. 

The decision by the sorting facility to not include glass in the blue bins as recycled 

has also had an impact on the total tonnage collected, however we have recycled 

more street sweepings this year.  

Recycling rates across England as a whole have plateaued or gone down slightly 

this year.   Figures are estimates at this stage - final official results will be available 

in June 2016 when Waste Data Flow is complete.

CBP2 1.2 Tonnage of waste sent to landfill

G

Actual 6,408

Target 6,443

A

Actual 6,285

Target 6,237


A

Actual 25,452

Target 26,053

This indicator needs to be reviewed as almost all waste now goes to the Energy 

Recovery Facility instead of landfill. 

The total amount of residual waste remains steady despite the strong growth in 

Housing in the district.  

CBP2 1.3
Residual household waste per 

household (kgs)

G

Actual 106.08

Target 106.65

A

Actual 104.04

Target 103.24


G

Actual 421.32

Target 431.27

The tonnage of residual waste for Q4  is lower than that for Q3 because many of 

the collection days disrupted by the Christmas/New Year holidays were undertaken 

in December; this meant that Q4 has less working days.  

An average of 35.11 kgs waste per household, per month was collected during the 

year which reflects a slight improvement on 35.95 kgs per household, per month, 

last year.

CBP2 1.4
Increase the number of glass recycling 

bank sites to 130
G A 

A

Actual 125

Target 130

There were 125 sites at the end of March which is marginally short of the target.

We are actively trying to identify new sites all the time as well as maintaining the 

existing sites.  

Cherwell District Council Business Plan : 2015/2016 

Safe, Green and Clean - Quarter 4

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP2 : Provide high quality recycling and waste services, aimed at helping residents recycle as much as possible



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP2 1.5
Deliver an additional 1,000 blue 

recycling bins this year
G* G* 

G*

Actual 1,557

Target 1,000

Target significantly exceeded full year due in part to publicity campaigns, reduction 

in the price of Blue Bins in conjunction with Blitz events and specific bin sale in 

December, all of which proved popular.

CBP2 1.6

Maintain the current high levels of 

customer satisfaction with our waste 

and recycling services

A A  A

CBP2 1.6a
Customer satisfaction with Waste 

Collection services

G

2014

85.00%

A

2015 

83.00%

A

2015 

83.00%

CBP2 1.6b
Customer satisfaction with Household 

Recycling services

G

2014

88.00%

A

2015

 87.00%

A

2015

 87.00%

CBP2 2.1

Pledge

Improve local residents' satisfaction 

with street & environmental cleanliness 

continuing our successful programme 

of neighbourhood litter blitzes  

G

2014

67.00%

G

Actual 

69.00%


G

Actual 

69.00%

We have overseen the smooth transition of the Banbury Town "Open Spaces" 

contract.  The Town Council are very happy with the level of service provided to 

date and have seen in a fall in complaints which is recorded as being in excess of 

90%.  This has also generated regular income for Cherwell District Council. 

CBP2 2.1a
Undertake 6 neighbourhood blitzes 

with community involvement

G

Actual 1

Target 1

G

Actual 2

Target 2


G

Actual 6

Target 6

All of the six planned Neighbourhood Blitz events have been completed.  They all 

proved to be very popular with members of the public and Councillors alike.  We 

have also recently supported Banbury Town Council in the "Clean for the Queen" 

initiatives, which involved our staff, members of the public, and local Councillors. 

Provide high quality street cleansing services, and tackle environmental crime (littering, fly tipping, graffiti) where it arises.

In order to maintain/enhance customer satisfaction on waste collection we will take 

the following measures:-

• Ensure all our collection staff are trained and competent.

• Ensure all  staff are smart, wearing corporate Personal Protective Equipment

(PPE) and carry out their duties professionally.

• Regularly remind staff of the need for high quality customer service through

team briefings.

• Ensure our supervisors monitor the performance of our collection staff in

areas such as returning bins to the point of collection.

• Investigate any complaints and put in place any actions needed.





Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP2 2.1b
Number of fly tips recorded

(compared with same period 2014/15)

R

Actual 119

Target 101

R

Actual 145

Target 130


R

Actual 551

Target 479

A further rise in fly tips recorded in Q4.  Issues include householders using the 

"man in a van" to dispose of their waste, which is invariably dumped rather  than 

being disposed of it correctly.   During 2016/17 we will be working with Comms to 

educate the public on how to ensure their waste is dealt with and disposed of in the 

correct manner; this will include the information they should gather when using 

somebody to take their waste.

It also appears that a lot of the smaller types of fly tips and the single items that are 

dumped could have very easily been recycled, for example cardboard, small 

electrical items and general waste that contains recyclable material.   Where 

possible fly tip contents will be examined in more detail with a view to identifying 

items that could have been recycled in one form or another and then working again 

with Comms and the recycling team, we can bring these to the attention of the 

public.

CBP2 2.1c
Number of fly tips enforcement actions 

(compared with same period 2014/15)

R

Actual 70

Target 151

R

Actual 53

Target 71


R

Actual 244

Target 345

Following recruitment of the Enforcement Officer on 22 February 2016, the number 

of fly tip inspections will now increase enabling officers to increase the formal 

action taken.

There will also be some work with the Comms team to educate and bring to the 

public's attention the problems with using unlicensed waste carriers and to 

reinforce the recycling regime as many fly tips contain waste that can be easily 

and freely recycled.

CBP2 3.1

Develop an alternative CCTV 

operational system for our Urban 

centres

G G  G

Thames Valley Police are re distributing staff across the county.  They are also 

commissioning a technical consultant to investigate smarter working using new 

technology.  

One potential outcome is the progression to minimal staffing of rooms and 

maximum access to data from officers on the ground.  Although beneficial to the 

police this may not suit the longer term aspirations for the authority if we wish to 

pursue commercialisation.

CBP2 3 : Work with partners to help ensure the district remains a low crime area, reducing fear of crime and tackling Anti-Social Behaviour. 



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP2 3.2

Pledge

Work with local police & licensees to 

ensure town centres remain safe & 

vibrant in the evenings 

G G  G

There has been no appreciable increase in night time violence in the towns. 

Numbers of exclusions from the towns have fallen indicating that generally 

licensees are managing responsibly and co-operating with the police.

The Autumn customer satisfaction survey may give a clearer indication of our 

direction of travel.

CBP2 3.2a

Percentage of ASB/Nuisance service 

requests resolved within 56 working 

days 

A

Actual 94.00%

Target 96.00%

A

Actual 94.00%

Target 96.00%


A

Actual 94.00%

Target 96.00%

provisional

The aim is to resolve service requests within 56 days, however, depending on the 

nature and complexity of the case it can take longer than this.

For service requests received in February and March the 56 day period expires at 

end of April and May respectively, and so this data has not, as yet, been reported. 

CBP2 3.2b

Percentage of ASB/Nuisance cases 

responded to within prescribed period 

of 2 working days 

G

Actual 97.38%

Target 96.00%

G

Actual 96.69%

Target 96.00%


G

Actual 96.77%

Target 96.00%

Although Q4 performance showed a slight reduction over Q3 both are above 

target.  Full year performance saw 1,736 service requests of which 1,680 were 

responded to within the 2 working day agreement.

CBP2 4.1

Deliver the Council’s Biodiversity 

Action Plan (BAP) “Protecting and 

Enhancing Cherwell’s Natural 

Environment”

G G  G

The 2015/16 BAP was approved at Executive in June 2015.  Appropriate year-end 

reports have been received from all BAP delivery partners in accordance with 

service level agreements.  The reports will be published on the website.

CBP2 4.2

Develop and  begin Implementation of  

a new carbon management plan from 

2015-20 which increases the energy 

efficiency of the organisation and 

lowers the carbon footprint

A A  A
Due to the complexities of the necessary data to be transmitted, it will be 

unavailable until the end of May.

CBP2 4 : Reduce our carbon footprint and protect the natural environment.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

CBP3 1.1

Pledge

Deliver 150 units of affordable housing 

and 100 self-build housing projects as 

part of the HCA funded Build!® 

programme whilst exploring new 

diverse funding regimes for the longer 

term sustainability of affordable 

housing across the district and the 

potential development of an off-site 

construction facility for the long term 

production of off-site units for 

affordable housing 

G G  G

Over Q4 a number of planning pre-applications have been submitted in order to 

move forward with regeneration sites identified in Banbury which includes the newly 

secured Admiral Holland pub site and another large brownfield site in Banbury which 

could enable a number of new affordable housing opportunities created. 

The year overall has been positive with new opportunities identified as well as 

established sites progressed to position which will enable new affordable housing to 

be delivered in the district under the Council's Build!®

CBP3 1.1a Deliver 150 affordable homes in the 

District 

G

Actual 67

Target 49

G*

Actual 115

Target 8


G*

Actual 322

Target 150

This month's completions have been significantly higher than targeted, representing 

an overall quarterly and annual completion rate of affordable homes which has 

surpassed the annual target. This has come from hard work of officers in the 

Investment and Growth Team as well as good partnership working with Registered 

Providers in the district, as well as internal departments including planning and legal

CBP3 1.1b
Deliver 100 self build housing projects 

G

Actual 8

Target 8

A

Actual 81

Target 86


A

Actual 95

Target 100

The target for self build housing projects was marginally missed as 95 self-build 

housing projects were delivered during the year. 

It was originally anticipated that the Admiral Holland pub site may well have 

commenced construction works prior to the end of the financial year, providing 

additional affordable housing opportunities through the Build programme.  This site 

was originally scheduled to deliver between 15-17 units which would have allowed 

the achievement of the full year delivery target.  However there were a number of 

acquisition delays outside of the Council’s control, which then impacted on the 

development schedule.  Further work is currently underway to bring this site forward 

to enable the development of additional affordable homes on the site.

Cherwell District Council Business Plan : 2015/2016  
Thriving Communities - Quarter 4

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3.1 :  Deliver affordable housing and work with private sector landlords to help improve affordable housing options



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 1.2

Explore new diverse funding regimes 

for longer term sustainability of 

affordable housing

G G  G

Over the past quarter the development team have continued to engage with the 

private finance sector over opportunities that may enable the Council to continue to 

deliver affordable housing in innovative and cost effective ways.

Generally over the past year the Development Team have engaged with a range of 

parties to explore potential funding streams which the Council could utilise in order 

to continue to deliver on its commitment to deliver affordable housing across the 

district. This has included bidding for European funding for a off-site construction 

method prototype which we are waiting to hear on. We have also kept close links 

with the Homes & Communities Agency and any new funds which the Council may 

be able to access, as well as progressing the Local Housing Company in order to 

transfer the Build!® stock to. 

CBP3 1.2a

Explore development of off-site 

construction facility for affordable 

housing production

G G  G

The development team have bid for European funding to enable a prototype to be 

developed which will lead to a pilot construction facility being explored as well as 

engaging with Graven Hill and the Bicester Team in order to offer expertise and 

knowledge around the self-build off-site construction industry together with 

continuing to build partnerships and interest in the Off-site industry.  There is now an 

internal project team set up which includes members of the Development Team 

which will lead on setting up an off-site construction facility in or around Bicester.  

This work will progress over the coming year. 

CBP3 1.3

Extend enforcement actions in private 

sector to bring empty dwellings back 

into use

G G  G

The Council has recruited its first dedicated Empty Property Officer, on a 2-year 

contract initially (0.5 FTE, with SNC also funding 0.5 FTE).  This officer will join us 

on 25/4/16 and will lead on our efforts to bring empty homes back into use and will 

provide a level of resource for this work that has not previously been available.

Four properties were brought back into use in Q4 with a total of seven during the 

year;  however, considerable time and effort have been invested and progress is 

being made with several further cases including a  property that is being converted 

to three new units with grant aid and at four properties where active efforts to sell or 

renovate are underway.  (This area of work has been rather squeezed by reactive 

work during the year and by the loss of a team member in early January which 

necessitated a reallocation of resources to provide cover for reactive and statutory 

duties).  

CBP3 1.3a

Provide housing/grant advice to 

encourage private sector landlords to 

improve their stock

G G  G

Six private-rented properties were improved through Cherwell Energy Efficiency 

Project (CHEEP) energy-efficiency grant contributions during the year; one of which 

was in Q4.  

We are actively working with the leaseholders of 11 rented flats in a residential block 

to get window replacements installed and expect to see those 11 grant jobs 

completed in 2016-17.

14 private-rented properties were renovated by means of Landlord Home 

Improvement Grants securing nomination-rights and affordable rent.  Seven of 

which were completed in Q4. 



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 2.1

Commissioning of high quality financial 

and debt advice for vulnerable 

residents

G G  G

The corporate Money and Debt advice contract continues to be monitored quarterly 

by the Housing Team.  Figures for the final quarter are not yet available but 

throughout the year the greatest need for support has been for issues relating to 

benefits, debts and housing costs.   

The existing contract is due to expire on 31 March 2017.  The Housing department 

have started initial discussions regarding retendering for a new service to begin in 

April 2017 and will need to progress early in 2016/17 for a formal tendering process 

to be completed. We are keen to progress as this service helps to maintain our 

homeless prevention and service delivery.

It is expected that the need for this type of support is likely to increase over the 

coming years as further welfare reforms start to be introduced including the lowering 

of the benefit cap from £26,000 to £20,000 for families (expected to be introduced in 

Autumn 2016) and the extension to the roll out of universal credit to all new 

claimants leading to one payment per month including their housing costs will all 

require a robust money and debt advice service to be available within the district 

moving forward. 

CBP3 2.2
Effective implementation of welfare 

reform and administration of benefits
G G  G

Universal Credit (UC) started in Cherwell District Council on 6 May 2015.  

Take up has been slow, as expected and there have been no issues.  The timetable 

for the 2016/17 UC rollout has been and this will not impact the Council. 

CBP3 2.2a
Average time to  process new Housing 

Benefit claims (days)

G

Actual 13.14

Target 14.00

G

Actual 13.00

Target 14.00


G

Actual 12.75

Target 14.00

Performance levels have been maintained in the final quarter despite the additional 

processing work and disruption due to annual uprating processes.  This 

performance should continue into the next quarter. 

1,957 new housing benefit claims were received during the year (2,291 in 2014/15); 

full year processing performance was 12.75 days compared with 13.87 last year.

CBP3.2 : Work with partners to support financial inclusion and help local people into paid employment.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 2.2b
Average time to process change in 

circumstances (days)

G

Actual 5.06

Target 12.00

G*

Actual 2.52

Target 12.00


G*

Actual 3.16

Target 12.00

Processing of changes of circumstances has remained well within target due to the 

impact of ATLAS automation.  43,617 changes in circumstances were actioned this 

year compared with 39,081 last year.  

An exceptional full year performance which compares favourably with 4.17 days in 

2014/15.

CBP3 2.2c

Average time taken to process new 

claims and changes for Housing 

Benefit (days)

G

Actual 5.59

Target 12.00

G*

Actual 2.81

Target 12.00


G*

Actual 3.56

Target 12.00

A good improvement in performance during Q4 and comfortably within target for the 

period and also full year; it is expected this level of performance will be maintained 

in the coming year. 

This year's full year performance reflected a good improvement over 5.75 days 

achieved in 2014/15.  

CBP3 2.3
Number of covert surveillances applied 

for
G G  G No requests for covert surveillances were made during the year.

CBP3 2.4

(Pledge)

Continue working with our partners to 

provide support to improve the lives 

and opportunities for the most 

vulnerable individuals and families in 

the district, building on Brighter Futures 

in Banbury programme

G G  G

The second workshop for the Brighter Futures in Banbury programme involve a 

successful 'employability' workshop on 18 March 2016 which brought secondary and 

higher education together with local employers. A range of actions and initiatives 

were developed from this which are now being considered.  

CBP3 2.5

(Pledge)

Continue to support skills 

development, apprenticeships and job 

clubs in order to help support local 

employment and reduce the number of 

young people not in education, 

employment or training.  

G G  G

On 18 March, the Council led an Employable Banbury workshop as part of the 

Brighter Futures in Banbury programme, held at Banbury College and including 

Victoria Prentis MP.  Particular emphasis was placed upon 'building bridges' 

between businesses, educators and organisations.  Two apprentices from a local 

engineering company provided an impressive insight to the opportunities that are 

already available to young people.  Discussions enabled further links to be 

established between businesses, for instance in the promotion of the science, 

technology, engineering and maths (STEM) subjects. An action plans is being 

developed and further workshops are being planned to address related issues such 

as housing affordability. 



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 2.5

(Pledge)… continued

Continue to support skills 

development, apprenticeships and job 

clubs in order to help support local 

employment and reduce the number of 

young people not in education, 

employment or training.  

G G  G

March also featured the National Apprenticeship week, with specialist events held at 

North Oxfordshire Academy and other venues across Cherwell.  Day-to-day liaison 

with businesses by the economic growth team also provided referrals into the 

Oxfordshire Apprenticeship Services (also represented at job fairs, including popular 

ones with students during the half term week).

The Brighter Futures in Banbury programme is also providing a grant of £10,000 to 

Ethnic Minority Business Service to allow the continuation of guidance for long-term 

unemployed people (due to delays in European Union and LEP funding).

Job clubs and job fairs were provided in Banbury and Bicester, with 533 visits made 

during the quarter. This included two job fairs being held (Banbury & Bicester) in 

addition to weekly job clubs. All age groups are helped and also people that were 

already in employment to change careers. The job club partnership links have also 

promoted apprenticeships and traineeships to businesses as a practical means of 

engaging young people and supporting them in their career paths.

CBP3 2.5a
Contribute to the creation and/or 

safeguarding of 200 jobs

G*

Actual 536

Target 51

G*

Actual 82

Target 50


G*

Actual 1,083

Target 200

Considerable assistance provided to businesses recruiting local people.  Tailored 

events provided to business needs through the job club and job fair services 

enabled the recruitment of over 1,000 staff : this support a wide range of businesses 

across the district that required help to fill vacancies in manufacturing, logistics, 

retail, care, research and development, leisure, etc.

CBP3 2.6
Extend Jobs Match service to support 

local companies to fill vacancies
G G*  G*

Excellent feedback has been received from job seekers and employers alike. The 

matching of job seekers and employers has evolved from the successful Cherwell 

Job Clubs which continue to alternate between Bicester and Banbury. During the 12 

month period of 2015-16, a record number of six major job fairs were held, providing 

180 stands for local employers and training providers, attracting over 1,000 job 

seekers and career changers.  A database of job seekers and employers continues 

to be developed and regular communication is made to ensure that skills and 

opportunities are matched for the benefit of the local economy - today and in future. 

Employers have also attended job clubs which has involved advance notification 

being given to job seekers so that they can discuss face-to-face with potential 

employers: most recently with the new Tesco at Bicester but also for a range of 

employers across the district providing various job opportunities. 

CBP3 2.7

Extend the contract with Citizens 

Advice Bureau (CAB) for debt advice, 

volunteering and volunteer driver 

scheme

G G  G
Extended contract will end 31/03/17.  Replacement proposals will be devised during 

the first half of 2016/17.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 3.1

Deliver the actions identified within the 

revised Homelessness prevention 

strategy adopted by the Council

G G  G

The new Homeless Prevention Action plan for 2016-17, setting out our priorities for 

the coming year, has recently been launched with a partnership multiagency event 

hosted by the lead member for housing.  It highlights the continued importance of 

multi-agency and partnership working with both statutory and voluntary sector 

organisations to ensure we provide a comprehensive network of support to the most 

vulnerable within our communities.  This in turn assists us to maintain our excellent 

performance in homelessness prevention at Cherwell and in keeping numbers in 

temporary accommodation placements as low as possible and within the Council's 

target.  The new action plan will be regularly monitored by a multi-agency steering 

group and also includes specific actions to try to prevent rough sleeping in Cherwell; 

this will be uploaded onto the CDC website shortly.  

The newly commissioned Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) 'Single Homeless 

Pathway' (which provides short term housing options for single homeless) began 

operating a new service from 1st February 2016.  The new service has provided the 

support to make available 13 beds for single homeless clients to be located in 

Cherwell for the first time.  This supported housing is managed by the county with first 

priority to always be given to local people from Cherwell.  This is a partnership 

venture with the support tender won by a voluntary sector partner and properties used 

provided through the CDC Build!® development team. We are monitoring the 

introduction of this new service very closely to ensure it is managed robustly and 

meets our local needs successfully and to find ways for it to continue when the county 

funding for support ceases in April 2017.  OCC have announced their budget for 

support for single homeless will be reduced to zero by the end of March 2017. We 

continue to participate in all discussions with the County and Districts of Oxfordshire 

to consider options to continue to provide this type of accommodation from April 

2017.  The Housing team are also considering whether this type of housing provision 

can be successfully provided through the Local Housing Company.  

CBP3 3.1a
No of households in temporary 

accommodation

G*

Actual 33

Target 41

G

Actual 39

Target 41


G

Actual 39

Target 41

This quarter has shown an increase in presentations from 33 in the last quarter to 39 

in this one.  The figures in Cherwell broadly reflect the national picture with an 

increase in homelessness due to households finding less options available and 

therefore approaching local authorities for assistance.  So far and due to the 

numbers of new social housing tenancies advertised on Choice based lettings, 

Cherwell have managed this demand effectively. We have also continued our 

partnership working and put in place strategies through the Homeless Action plan to 

provide the support to face anticipated higher demands. 

Provide high quality housing options advice and support to prevent homelessness. 



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 3.1b
Housing advice  : repeat 

homelessness cases

G*

Actual 0

Target 3

G*

Actual 0

Target 3


G*

Actual 0

Target 3

We are pleased to continue our 100% record of ensuring that those previously 

accepted as homeless have achieved long term settled outcomes (according to the 

official definition).

CBP3 4.1

Support the work of the Community 

Partnership Network (CPN) with 

financial, clinical and technological 

changes in the health and social care 

sector

G G  G

The Council continues to support the CPN through hosting and meeting 

chairmanship. The 8 March 2016 meeting considered the issues around Delayed 

Transfer of Hospital Care, current Horton Hospital activities, issues and 

developments, the strategic review of all the Oxfordshire University Hospitals 

Foundation Trust's hospital buildings and services including the Horton, Oxfordshire 

Healthcare Transformation agenda, the Bicester Healthy New Town, and the work of 

the Oxfordshire Health Inequalities Commission.   

CBP3 4.2

Enable the development of volunteer 

transport schemes to support the 

health and wellbeing needs of 

vulnerable residents

G G  G

Some further discussion with Oxfordshire County Council has taken place but 

definitive plans still awaited.  Councillor Atack regularly briefed in his role as rural 

champion. 

CBP3 5.1

Maintain a minimum usage level of 

visits to leisure facilities 

(Total of visits to District Leisure 

Centres and WGLC, NOA and Cooper)

G

Actual 365,582

Target 360,947

G

Actual 415,893

Target 413,827


G

Actual 1,539,121

Target 1,513,937

Cumulatively the Leisure Facilities have maintained and marginally increased 

participation in the final quarter of 2016 compared to 2015.

CBP3 5.1a 

Number of visits to District Leisure 

Centres 

(Spiceball, Kidlington & Gosford and 

Bicester)

G

Actual 324,034

Target 322,272

G

Actual 375,110

Target 373,744


G

Actual 1,391,964

Target 1,372,227

Cumulatively the 3 main leisure centres have maintained and marginally increased 

participation in the final quarter of 2016 compared to 2015.

CBP3 5.1b

Number of visits to Woodgreen Leisure 

Centre (WGLC), North Oxfordshire 

Academy (NOA) and Cooper School

G

Actual 41,548

Target 38,675

G

Actual 40,783

Target 40,083


G

Actual 147,157

Target 141,710

Cumulatively the visits to NOA, Woodgreen and Cooper are broadly the same as 

when comparing 2016 to 2015. 

Cooper performed below its target position however this in part can be attributed to 

the loss of both Basketball and Cricket bookings in the same period last year.

Provide high quality and accessible leisure opportunities. 

 Work to promote and support health and wellbeing across the district



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 5.2
Commence Phase 2  pavilion works for 

SW Bicester Sports Village
G G  G

The tender documents and procurement process for awarding a construction 

contract has been revised and is being re-tendered to a wider market. 

CBP3 5.3

Increase access to Leisure and 

Recreation opportunities through 

development and outreach work

G G  G

Sportivate year 5 programme finished in March 2016 with £19,589 secured for 

delivery of programmes. Over the year more than 2,000 11-25 year olds took part in 

activities. There was an 11-16 year old programme with all eight secondary schools 

which focused on Dance, Gym, Table Tennis, Multi Sports Squash and Badminton. 

18-25 year olds participating in opportunities such as Gym, Dance, Canoeing, 

Swimming, Squash, Rush Hockey, Triathlon, Basketball and more. As a result of the 

Sportivate programme fourteen new community clubs and development teams have 

been formed.

Bicester Football Development Partnership has been formed and is supported by 

officers, the Town Council and Oxfordshire Football Association.

CBP3 6.1

Secure social and community 

infrastructure for housing 

developments across the District

G G  G

The Cherwell community spaces development study was approved by the Executive 

in March and establishes a platform for Local Plan Part 2 policies.  The community 

provision identified at Graven Hill doesn't meet the established standard and will 

need to be enhanced in future phases.  The review of Community Assets is 

continuing and separate representation has been made on this.

CBP3 6.2
Continue to support the voluntary 

sector and community groups
G G  G

A comprehensive package of support delivered for and by voluntary organisations 

through our commissioning over the last 12 months.  2016/17 will see significant 

reductions in support from Oxfordshire County Council and this will impact on how 

we commission services and the range of those services in future.  Service level 

agreements and contracts will need to be re-tendered for April 2017 .

CBP3 6.3

Continue to support the growth & 

development of neighbourhood 

community associations

G G  G

New associations established for Kingsmere and a nascent association for Longford 

Park helped to refresh the membership of Hanwell Fields Association. 

We continue to work alongside colleagues in facilities management to progress the 

review of community assets. 

CBP3 6.4
Increase and promote volunteering 

opportunities throughout the District.
G G  G

Volunteer fair held and volunteer connect continuing to drive a bid for people to 

volunteer more in their local community.

 Provide support to the voluntary and community sector.  



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 6.5 Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) G G  G
The LSP continues to be a useful forum for co-ordinating partnership work and 

providing a sounding board for new ideas and initiatives. 

CBP3 7.1

Continue programme of Conservation 

Reviews 

(5 reviews during 2015/16)

G

Actual 2

Target 2

G

Actual 3

Target 3


G

Actual 5

Target 5

We have completed five Conservation Area Appraisals during the year; appraisals 

were completed for Mixbury, Souldon, Hampton Proyle, Wroxton and Swalcliffe.

CBP3 7.2
Provide design guidance on major 

developments
G G  G

The Design and Conservation team feed into the pre-app and planning applications 

for major and strategic sites.  

CBP3 7.3
Processing of Major Applications within 

13 weeks

G*

Actual 100.00%

Target 50.00%

G*

Actual 87.50%

Target 50.00%


G*

Actual 92.21%

Target 50.00%

24 Major applications were determined, 21 within the 13 week period resulting in a  

performance figure for Q4, significantly above target.  The performance figure has 

been achieved through the pro-active use of Planning Performance Agreements and 

negotiating extensions of time limits.  

It is important to note that Section 62B of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

(as amended) which allows the Secretary of State to designate Local Planning 

Authorities that are not 'adequately performing their function of determining 

applications' relates to their performance against major applications only, rather than 

minors and others. 

CBP3 7.4
Processing of Minor Applications within 

8 weeks

G*

Actual 89.17%

Target 65.00%

G*

Actual 85.25%

Target 65.00%


G*

Actual 79.39%

Target 65.00%

During Q4, 122 Minor applications were determined, of which 104 were within the 8 

week period.  This has been achieved through effective performance management 

and negotiating extensions of time limits with agents and applicants.

CBP3 7.5
Processing of Other Applications within 

8 weeks

G*

Actual 88.70%

Target 80.00%

G*

Actual 96.09%

Target 80.00%


G*

Actual 88.31%

Target 80.00%

Of 255 Other applications determined, 246 were processed within the 8 week 

period.

This exceeds the performance achieved in Q3 and significantly exceeds the 

performance target during a period of high workloads.  Again this has been achieved 

through effective performance management.  

Protect our built heritage by supporting effective conservation, managing the impacts of growth and working to ensure development takes place in appropriate areas.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP3 7.6

Percentage of planning appeals 

allowed against refusal decision (%)

Note the basis of this measure has 

changed 

G*

Actual 4.50%

Target 20.00%

G*

Actual 0.50%

Target 20.00%


G*

Actual 0.50%

Target 20.00%

The government's stated threshold for the quality of a local planning authority's 

performance (i.e. no more than 20 per cent of an authority's decisions on 

applications for major development should be overturned at appeal).

CBP3 8.1

Work with British Telecom (BT), 

Broadband Delivery United Kingdom 

(BDUK) and Oxfordshire County 

Council to extend Superfast Broadband 

across the District

G G  G

Phases 1 to 6 of the Oxfordshire Rural Broadband Project are now completed 

(December 2015), achieving coverage of 90% of premises (business and 

residential) being served with Superfast speeds (over 24mbps). 

 

From January 2016, Cherwell District Council is investing £580,000 in phases 6 to 9 

which will extend the programme to over 95% of premises by December 2017. This 

funding has been matched by Government (BDUK) and added to by both Local 

Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) serving Cherwell, including £120,000 from the South 

East Midlands LEP.  Economic Growth officers have also identified and resolved 

issues relating to gaps in the service to business clusters in urban areas, as well as 

extending the broadband voucher scheme to assist other, often isolated, 

businesses. 

 

The issue of how to enable the final 5% of business and residential premises to gain 

superfast speeds remains and is being considered in relation to technological 

advancement and partnership action. Information has been provided day-to-day to 

residents, businesses and parish councils.  Working towards 100% coverage 

remains an ambition of the Council and its partners with options expected to emerge 

over the coming months.

CBP3 8.2

“Rural Proof” significant new policies 

and initiatives to ensure they are 

equitable to rural residents

A A  A

Currently this process is somewhat ad-hoc. Officers are working towards a more 

clearly defined and consistently applied approach.  There is now some work on 

Rural proofing taking place at a national level which may be useful.

Work to ensure rural areas are connected to local services



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

CBP4 1

Pledge

Extend the Joint working 

Transformation Programme to include 

new service delivery methods/more 

services delivered in partnership, to 

enable the council to save money and 

maintain a low council tax 

G G  G

Significant progress delivered by year end. Business cases agreed for economic 

growth, communications, public protection and environmental health, customer 

service, revenues and benefits (subject to consultation) leisure and community 

(subject to consultation). Options under development for housing and planning.  

CBP 4 1.2

Identify and remove unnecessary work 

from service delivery processes to help 

deliver savings and efficiencies 

A A  A

ICT continue to work with and support the transformation team in the creation of 

business cases for shared services. We are embarking on a procurement for voice 

and data networks across CDC and SNC which should help to deliver cost savings 

for the councils, we are in the process of drafting a specification and hope to take 

this to tender in June 2016.

CBP 4 1.3

Plan to reduce the number of ICT 

systems required to deliver and 

manage services, through sharing 

where possible, and taking advantage 

of new procurement opportunities 

G G  G

The shared Lagan Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system went live in 

February 2016.  Civica Financial Management System went live April 2016 as 

planned. Northgate Human Resources and Payroll system is being updated to 

improve functionality for a further 2 years, work will begin to procure a replacement 

ready for April 2018. 

CBP 4 1.4

Through a 3-way Working Group with 

South Northamptonshire (SNC) and 

Stratford upon Avon District Councils 

(SDC), review service delivery 

operating models using the 

Transformation Challenge Funding 

provided by Department for 

Communities and Local Government 

(DCLG) in order to further our 

exemplar model of sharing services 

and deliver quantifiable efficiencies an 

savings; deliver a minimum of 10% 

financial savings

R R 

Target closed: 

In January 2016 SDC made the decision not to adopt the three way joint working 

approach as set out in the business case considered by the councils in December 

2014 and February 2015. This  change in direction reflects different strategic 

objectives in terms of the devolution agenda and commercial ways of working. CDC 

and SNC have continued to implement the proposals adopted in the business case 

on a two way basis and have achieved savings targets in line with projections.

Cherwell District Council Business Plan : 2015/2016

Sound Budgets and Customer Focused Council -  Quarter 4

CBP4 1 : Reduce the cost of providing our services through partnerships, joint working and other service delivery models.

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP 4 1.5
Make successful bids for external 

funding
G G  G

The Business Support Unit has been considering the options for accessing external 

funding opportunities, including using external funding databases to support this 

process. The Grants Officer has investigated the options and a decision has been 

made on a preferred supplier to support this process.  Once we go live with the 

product in the first quarter of 2016-2017, we will be able to advise, support and 

encourage the bid process in order to enable the organisation to make successful 

bids for external funding.

CBP 4 1.6
Maximise income through designing 

services that can attract a market
G G  G

Commercial development is underway, a number of options are being developed 

specifically related to housing and development.

CBP 4 1.7

Deploy solutions which reduce ‘non-

productive’ time spent travelling 

between sites and deliver reductions in 

mileage and subsistence costs through 

increased use of technologies such as 

video conferencing.  

G G  G

The 2015/16 work programme continues to deliver two key projects - Citrix and Lync 

telephony. 

These will enable officers to work more flexibly from different locations and in doing 

so reduce non productive time spent travelling.

CBP 4 1.8

Review all ICT contracts to harmonise 

where possible to gain cost savings 

through economies of scale achieved 

through increased joint working

A A  A

An external review of the three-way ICT service has identified a number of issues 

(encompassing strategy, governance, projects and service delivery).  Following this 

review and the decision to cease any further plans for three-way joint working ICT 

will revert to a two-way service.  The scope of Workstream 7 (ICT Vision and 

Strategy) will alter significantly, to focus on transition and will address performance 

issues and set out a new strategy and prioritised work plan.

CBP4 2.1

Continue to increase our use of social 

media to communicate with residents 

and local businesses 

G G  G
Social media is considered one of our key communications channel.  Both likes and 

engagement continue to increase.  

CBP4 2.1a

Social media ratings: Facebook likes 

(cumulative)

Target is 2015 actual for comparison

A

Actual 8,155

Target 8,566

A

Actual 8,506

Target 9,000


A

Actual 8,506

Target 9,000

Facebook likes for year end stand at 8,506 and growth continues steadily.  Although 

we were disappointed to fall slightly short of the stretch target we had set - it is still 

an achievement to reach this figure and the CDC Facebook page remains the most 

active in Oxfordshire.

Work to effectively communicate with local residents and businesses to better understand and respond to their needs 



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP4 2.1b

Social media ratings: Twitter followers 

(cumulative)

Target is 2015 actual for comparison

R

Actual 5,856

Target 6,951

R

Actual 6,054

Target 7,500


R

Actual 6,054

Target 7,500

Twitter growth is slower than that of Facebook, but whereas Facebook has benefited 

from some boosted (paid for) activity, all likes through Twitter are organic.  

Additional effort will be put into Twitter next year, including the use of the hashtag, 

and some paid for promotion. 

CBP4 2.2

Pledge

Continue to improve our website, and 

implement additional online services 

for customers and maintain the Society 

of Information Technology 

Management (SOCITM) rating of 3/4 

stars 

G G  G

The website has been maintained on an on-going basis, although development has 

been staid as there are plans to move to a new single platform.  Work on this was 

place 'on hold' whilst discussions were on-going about the future working with 

Stratford.  We await the SOCITM rating, but early indications should the integration 

with Bartech may have caused an issue with reporting a missing bin.

CBP4 2.3
Continue to develop our business 

focused communications
G G  G

Through the year the team has worked with the Economic Development team to 

support Job Clubs, Job Fairs and the Town Centre coordinators.  During the year 

the Job Fairs achieved record highs in terms of exhibitors (businesses) and 

attendee numbers.  The e-bulletin has been revamped and a new wordle identity 

has been implemented across a number of publications and online applications.  

CBP4 3.1

Implement additional online services 

for customers and deliver a significant 

reduction in phone contact in relation to 

those services

G G  G

Lagan Upgrade complete with both Councils using a single Platform, this will give 

the service the foundation to further develop shared practices and harmonise first 

point of contact for services that have already become shared.

On-going work with services to assist with their shared service planning and channel 

shift work, to compliment and meet the aims of the various transformation 

programme work streams.  Single telephone directory for use across both Councils 

is complete. 

CBP4 3.2

Increased capacity to build service 

delivery processes suitable for online 

services

G G  G

Lagan Upgrade complete with both Councils using a single Platform, building back 

office capacity to develop further online services.  Shared Customer Service 

business case approved and structure in place for implementation from 01/04/16.

 Improve customer service through the use of technology and responding to customer feedback



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP4 3.3

Bring about a measurable plan to 

increase significantly the proportion of 

our total customer demand that is met 

through self service

G G  G

CBP4 3.4

Target the reduction of avoidable 

contact from customers by improved 

information signposting, more 

information on line and improved 

letters and communications with clear, 

understandable instructions and 

information

G G  G

CBP4 4.1

Deliver the rolling annual balanced 

budget setting of the financial plan 

(Medium Term Financial Strategy)

G G  G

The provisional settlement announcement was better than expected for 2016/17 

meaning that setting a balanced budget is achievable.  There is an offer of a 4 year 

settlement, which will give us the ability to plan but will see a significant reduction in 

funding from 2018/19.  

CBP4 4.2

Pledge

Deliver the savings targets £500,000 

within the agreed  timescales

G G  G
These have been delivered in 2015-16 and have also been included the budget for 

2016-17.

CBP4 4.3 Develop a car parking strategy G G  G

A car parking services strategy is being developed to consider the future site and 

service delivery options for the Council. This is expected to be concluded by the end 

of the first half of 2016/17.  

CBP4 4.5

Reduce costs by increasing customer 

use of online services rather than face 

to face

G G  G

ICT are supporting the communications manager who is leading on the creation of a 

website specification that can be used to tender for the website redevelopment. This 

is a change in approach following the decision to return the ICT service to a 2-way 

SNC/CDC service.

Deliver rolling strategy of the five year business strategy, medium term financial plan and a capital programme that ensures the Council is resourced to deliver its strategic priorities.

In line with Customer Services (CS) transformation work stream, the plan to phase 

in a shared approach across the 2 Councils for CS has been developed for 

implementation during 2016.  

This includes process mapping and redesign to enable online capability to increase 

self-service so customers can understand and access our information easily so that 

avoidable contact is reduced and queries can be dealt with at first point of contact.

Bicester Office at Franklins House opened on 04/04/16 with six new self service PC 

and telephone access points.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

HR001/2/3

Sickness absence - average days lost 

per full time equivalent (FTE)

(note: cumulative throughout the year 

full year target 8 days)

G*

Actual 4.62

Target 6.00

G*

Actual 6.66

Target 8.00


G*

Actual 6.69

Target 8.00

Overall 6.69 average days per FTE were lost due to sickness absence amounting to 

2717.29 days lost overall.  This is a reduction of 0.38 days per FTE in comparison to 

2014/15.

3.7 days per FTE were lost due to short term sickness absence, amounting to 

1515.12 days lost.  2.72 days per FTE were lost due to long term sickness absence, 

amounting to 1202.16 days lost.

The main reason for short term absence is infections (including cold and flu 

symptoms) accounting for 28.71% of all short term absence.  The main reason for 

long term absence is stress, depression and anxiety, accounting for 48.54% of all 

long term absence.

This year we have continued to work closely with Occupational Health to carefully 

manage sickness absence cases with a view to employees returning to health and 

work as quickly as they are able.

Flu jabs were also offered to the entire workforce at both Councils and stress 

management workshops have been provided by our Occupational Health provider 

for managers to assist with managing employees suffering from stress.  These were 

delivered in January 2016 so it is too early to tell if these have had any impact as 

yet.

COM001

Number of customer complaints 

received

(compared with same period last year)

G

Actual 57

Target 60

G*

Actual 53

Target 72


G

Actual 261

Target 288

There was a reduction in the number of complaints received during Q4 when 

compared to the same period last year.  93.05% of these complaints were 

responded to within the agreed 3 day target and 73.61% within 10 day resolution 

period.

Of the total complaints received during the year, 129 were deemed as being valid 

after investigation and 43 Stage 1 complaints were escalated and investigated as 

Stage 2 complaints.  The number of complaints acknowledged within the 3 day 

Service Level Agreement (SLA) decreased from 95.49% in 2014/15 to 90.04%; this 

drop was isolated to a period in Q3 when recruitment into the Performance & Insight 

Administrator post took place.  

Full year performance for investigations completed within the 10 day SLA was 

79.31%, however this figure does not include the number of complaints where 

extension dates were agreed, in accordance with the policy. 



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4

31/03/2016

Q on Q

Direction 

of Travel

End of Year 

Position

31/03/2016

Objective/Measure Definition Comments on Performance

CBP4 5.1

Develop and implement a commercial 

investment strategy, incorporating DTZ 

recommendations as adopted. 

G G  G

Continued dialogue with members through the Asset Management Group continues. 

It is not possible at this stage to come to a final view around an Asset Management 

disposal and investment strategy but will be produced subject to the service review 

process and further meetings of the Asset Management Members Group.

CBP4 5.2
Total of All Car Parking Revenue 

(Cash Machines & Ringgo only)

G
Actual £320,823

Target £313,827

G
Actual £339,645

Target £322,019


G

Actual £1,343,942

Target £1,264,003

The income processed in Q4 was £17.6k more than budget and this has resulted in 

the annual income, subject to any year end adjustments, being £79.9k more than 

budget.

CBP4 6.1 Percentage of council tax collected

A

Actual 86.10%

Target 86.50%

G

Actual 98.65%

Target 98.25%


G

Actual 98.65%

Target 98.25%

As expected the change to paying by 12 monthly instalments means that collection 

rates have recovered in the final quarter of the year. 

CBP4 6.2 Percentage of NNDR collected

A

Actual 83.73%

Target 86.00%

G

Actual 98.96%

Target 98.50%


G

Actual 98.96%

Target 98.50%

Collection targets have been met due to proactive work by the Service Assurance 

and Customer Service teams in cooperation with Capita's staff.  The collection rate 

would have been even higher but for a number of large units entering the list just 

before the end of the financial year. 

Work to ensure the Council gets the most out of its resources, including land and property through effective asset management.

Deliver below inflation increases to the CDC element of Council Tax



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

DOT

CEQ1 1

To provide accessible and meaningful 

consultation events throughout the Cherwell 

community

G G 

The Draft Joint Consultation and Community Engagement Strategy and Actions Plans are being reviewed 

and will be submitted to Executive and Cabinet for approval during Q1 2016/17.

During 2015/16 the Faith Forum met three times; there was a provision of grants to local faith projects (the 

reports of these projects will be included in the full Annual Report) and we successfully joined the Inter 

Faith Network that allows us access to shared faith resources and the ability to run an Annual Inter Faith 

Community Event during Inter Faith Week.   Further discussion and planning has occurred regarding the 

future structure of the Faith Forum to align with the changes to the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).  A 

briefing paper will go to the LSP meeting on the 21 April 2016 with an Annual Report & Proposal for the 

continued involvement of Faith Groups with LSP and Connecting Communities at the LSP Board on 4 

August 2016.

Connecting Communities Event "Have Faith in Community" was held in the Brighter Futures in Banbury 

Grimsbury Ward on the 21 November 2015 and an evaluation report was prepared of this event including 

lessons learnt from it; over 23 different partner organisations attended, with a 'Give & Take' recycling 

opportunity as well as the waste recycling trailer that attracted the local residents to the event.  It 

demonstrated a new method of cross working of different faith and community groups with multi agency's 

including CDC departments and was promoted as an excellent Inter Faith Community Event by the Inter 

Faith Network. 

The consultation 'wall' has been used at events in partnership with Sanctuary Housing at their Community 

Days held in their housing centres across Cherwell.  Views of the residents were captured and passed 

onto the relevant CDC department or external agents (Oxfordshire County Council and Thames Valley 

Police). The relationship with Sanctuary Housing has been strengthened through sharing knowledge and 

event attendance.   The Consultation & Engagement Officer attended the Bicester & Banbury Police 

Independent Advisory Groups where further opportunities for the 'wall' to be used have been scheduled 

for 2016 to link in with Police community consultation.

Cherwell District Council  : 2015/2016 

Equalities -  Quarter 4 / End of Year

Comments on Performance

Theme 1 : Fair Access and Customer Satisfaction

Objective/Measure Definition



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

DOT Comments on PerformanceObjective/Measure Definition

CEQ1 2

To ensure that the Council's services are 

accessible to everyone and delivered at an 

excellent standard

G G 

A new online based Customer Satisfaction survey has been developed and approved within the housing

team to be used as a trial to help gain better insight into the department's performance. We will be

reviewing responses closely to check if this type of survey can meet our needs and be used to improve

the Housing Needs service.

All Leisure facilities mystery visitor reports are sent to the General Manager at Parkwood Leisure and any

improvements are addressed by the centre management teams. Any items that require urgent attention

are raised by officers with the General Manager to ensure improvements are made.  

In the final quarter of the year 21 mystery visits were carried out. Whilst there were an array of comments

both negative and positive the common theme was the response time at Kidlington Leisure Centre for

phone calls. This has been previously reported and an automated system is being investigated for

improvement.

CEQ2 1
Continue to deliver the ‘Breaking the Cycle 

of Deprivation’ projects
G G 

The second workshop for the Brighter Futures in Banbury programme involved a successful 

'employability' workshop on 18 March 2016 which brought secondary and higher education together with 

local employers. A range of actions and initiatives were developed from this which are now being 

considered.

Citizens Advice Bureau "Volunteer Connect" contract is increasing volunteer opportunities & providing 

volunteers for local organisations.  Contract ends 31/03/17.  Consideration to be given to alternative/less 

expensive method of volunteer engagements in the future.

CEQ3 1

Improve opportunities for community groups 

to work together and build strong 

community relations

G G 

CEQ3 2

Joint working with Thames Valley Police to 

highlight and reduce any community tension 

and build trust in local services.

G G 

Theme 2 : Tackling Inequality and Deprivation

Theme 3 : Building Strong Communities 

The proactive approach has continued; Consultation & Engagement Officer has continued to attend both 

the Bicester & Banbury Independent Advisory Group meetings as well as working closely with the Police 

Neighbourhood Teams of Banbury and Kidlington due to other engagement events/shared information. 

To move forward further discussions have be held to plan to make greater use of shared events to 

engage with the community in 2016/17.

The Community Safety Partnership action plan has now gone live with 21 actions, some of these being 

picked up from the old plan.  Many are focused on preventing radicalisation and child sexual exploitation.  

Activity already taking place is: delivery of a Barnardos detached worker in Banbury, engaging with the 

communities.  A prevent interactive workshop in all secondary schools wishing to participate and a 

cybercrime workshop aimed at secondary schools to raise awareness of cyber issues such as bullying, 

radicalisation and grooming.



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

DOT Comments on PerformanceObjective/Measure Definition

CEQ3 3

Continue to increase Cherwell’s knowledge 

and understanding of the wider community 

to ensure we fulfil all residents’ needs within 

our services

G G 

The Community Spaces and Development Study was approved by Executive on 1 February 2016.  Some 

further work is now needed to ensure it dovetails with the forthcoming Developer Contributions 

Supplementary Planning Document.

CEQ4 1

Work with local schools, colleges & sixth 

forms to engage  with the districts younger 

generation

G G 

The Youth Website continues to be updated on a weekly basis to hold key up to date youth information 

and promotion for the district.

All Cherwell secondary schools are signed up and attend quarterly Youth Parliament meetings.   Work 

with schools on going from October local democracy event - Q&A arranged with local MP for youth action 

teams.  Key Council members are linked to local secondary schools, this work continues to be on-going.

CEQ4 2

Explore and establish links with minority 

representation/community groups to help us 

improve our services

G G 

The historic Equality and Access Panel used to consult with minority groups  has been disbanded in line 

with the Community Engagement and Consultation Strategy review.  This review will be complete and a 

new strategy put in place during Q1 of 2016/2017 whereby actions for linking with minority groups will be 

put in place. 

Milton Keynes Equality Council (MKEC) has taken over third party reporting from Stop Hate UK for all of 

the Thames Valley area.  The Council's website has been updated with the new reporting information 

including a link under the 'report it' section on the front page.  Council staff have been advised of the new 

reporting process via In Brief and a Knowing your Community event. 

The Disability Sports Development Plan has achieved its set objective with many new activities such as 

"Wheels for all" becoming established programme opportunities. The Plan has been revised with new 

targets for 2016/17. 

CEQ4 3 G G 

Knowing our Community briefing was held on 9 March 2016 on the subject of Hate Crime; it was not well 

attended and to avoid low numbers for 2016/17 further work has been done to ensure that for 

development, all managers will be expected to attend the Knowing our Community briefings (links with 

Safeguarding training). The subject of the briefings will be considered by suggesting options of topics as a 

'poll' in In-Brief and to direct by email to those whom previously have previously attended a staff Knowing 

our Community event. 

Theme 4 : Positive Engagement and Understanding

Raise Cherwell District Council Employees 

and Partners  awareness of diversity within 

our community 



Ref
Quarter 3

31/12/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

DOT Comments on PerformanceObjective/Measure Definition

CEQ5 1
Ensure the Council meets all government

requirements
G G 

Cherwell District Council remains compliant and aware of legislation and duties associated with the 

Equality Act 2010 and the specific duties to Local Authorities.

CEQ5 2

Review CDC performance against 

Achieving criteria to maintain/improve 

standards

G G 

Action completed during Q1 of 2015/16 for previous year.  Q1 2016/17 will see review take place for 

overall performance against the Equality Scorecard and presented to the Executive meeting on Monday 4 

July 2016. 

Theme 5 : Demonstrating our Commitment to Equality



Partnerships reports six-monthly

Quarter 2

30/09/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Direction 

of Travel

  Health and Well Being Partnership 

  Board (H&WB)
G G 

County partnership activities still underway. Strategic change is proposed through the devolution bid 

to Government which will integrate health and social care under the governance of the H&WB 

Board. Further activities include the development of a healthy weight strategy to improve the obesity 

position in the county.  

  Oxfordshire Safer Community Partnership (OSCP) G G 

The OSCP has completed a review and will now be in two parts; the first an officer group known as 

the coordination group, the second a members group known as the Oversight committee under the 

title Safer Oxfordshire Partnership. The main thrust of the change is the re alignment with the adult 

and child safeguarding boards. This facilitates a statutory link to governance and accountability.

  Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEP)

  (Oxfordshire)
G G 

European Union (EU) funding awarded, awaited.

Extends service of Eco Development team with Business Advisers for Business.

  Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEP)

  (South Midlands)
G G  The Velocity Programme is being revised to align with the new EU funded posts.

  Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) G G 
The LSP continues to be a useful forum for co-ordinating partnership work and providing a sounding 

board for new ideas and initiatives.

  Cherwell Safer Community Partnership  (CSCP) G G 

The CSCP continues to meet quarterly with Councillor Ilott as chairman. The action plan is re written 

and the strategy published on the Cherwell web site.  Funding for the year 2016-17 has been 

continued by the Police and Crime Commissioner although there is no guarantee in future years this 

will be continued.

Cherwell-specific Partnerships

Significant Partnerships 2015/2016 : Quarter 4 / End of  Year

Comments on Performance

Sub-Regional Partnerships



Partnerships reports six-monthly

Quarter 2

30/09/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Direction 

of Travel

Significant Partnerships 2015/2016 : Quarter 4 / End of  Year

Comments on Performance

  Cherwell M40 Investment Partnership (CHIP) G G 

Considerable success is now being recorded through property completions and job creation as the 

result of support provided over recent years in partnership with businesses, commercial property 

agents and developers.  Retail, logistics and manufacturing companies have also worked with the 

job match and job fairs co-ordinated by CDC to expand their workforce and skills.  Further 

developments currently in the 'pipeline' are expected in the coming months.

158 detailed business enquiries served during the year 2015-16, including inward investors, 

expanding indigenous companies and businesses seeking advice and information.

  Banbury Town Centre Partnership (BTCP) G G 

The BTCP receives input from the Town Centre Coordinators appointed using Portas funding. 

Currently working with the town businesses to implement a package of additional marketing and 

promotional changes in support of strengthening the town centre as a place to shop, visit and spend 

leisure time

  Bicester Vision (BV) G G  Membership continues and the focus on the partnership is job creation.

  Homelessness Strategy Partnership G G 

We have  worked  in partnership through service level agreements  with Banbury Community 

Church (The Hill), Banbury and District Housing Coalition (drop in centre for Rough Sleepers and 

those unsuitably housed), Banbury Young Homelessness Project (support for young people aged 16 

- 25), Citizens Advice (Fast track housing advice service), Connection Floating Support (Rough 

Sleeper Outreach and verification to access Homeless Hostel beds), Reducing the Risk (outreach 

support for victims of low/medium level Domestic Abuse) and Bicester Salvation Army (Drop in 

Centre for rough sleepers and those unsuitably housed in Bicester and surrounding area).  By 

working in partnership through agreements we ensure that all parties understand our aims to 

prevent homelessness. We monitor these partnerships closely to ensure they help to prevent 

homelessness when possible and also provide appropriate advice to those in housing need whilst 

also achieving value for money.

The Homeless Prevention Action Plan has been reviewed and has identified the key role these 

partnerships play to support the council in fulfilling its responsibilities around homelessness and the 

importance of continued partnership working in 2016/17. In future we are expecting further changes 

to support funding and service delivery both nationally and locally. This will require us to undertake a 

further review in 2016/17.



Partnerships reports six-monthly

Quarter 2

30/09/2015

Quarter 4/

End of Year

31/03/2016

Direction 

of Travel

Significant Partnerships 2015/2016 : Quarter 4 / End of  Year

Comments on Performance

  Cherwell RSL Partnership & Sanctuary 

  Housing Group
G G 

Quarterly meetings have continued to be held for all Registered Providers (RPs) operating within the 

district to attend.  These meetings provide opportunities for staff to network, discuss national policy 

changes and share good practice.  The forum ensures the council has good dialogue with Housing 

providers operating in the District and ensures they link with other teams across the Council as there 

is representation from Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), Customer Services and Revenue and Benefit 

teams to support the Housing team.  During the last 6 months a working agreement between the 

Council and RPs has been finalised and is circulated for signature to strengthen partnership 

working.  This document clarifies all parties expectations, monitoring and cooperation and we hope 

can improve working relationships and understanding. 

Quarterly monitoring is received from all RPs with housing stock in the district.  This is monitored to 

ensure they are allocating properties in accordance with the nominations agreement and Council 

Allocations scheme rules.  In 2016/17 we also anticipate establishing annual formal appraisals with 

larger social housing providers in the District to improve partnership working.  Sanctuary remain the 

largest provider and we have agreed to meet them bi-annually to review performance and local 

working arrangements.

  NW Bicester Strategic Delivery Board G G 

The Bicester Strategic Delivery Board continues to meet on a quarterly basis. Within the last quarter 

the Board has reviewed its Terms of Reference and membership to ensure it remains fit for purpose 

to steer the strategic direction of the growth of Bicester.

  Banbury Brighter Futures G G 

The Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme is focussing its multi agency efforts on a series of 

specific workshops.  Health Improvement and Health Inequalities were considered in December 

2015, Employability was considered in March 2016 and Child Poverty is being planned for June 

2016.  Each of these workshops are expected to develop a range of actions and new multi agency 

initiatives targeted at those local Banbury people most in need.



Annual Performance Report
June 2016
Looking back on 2015-16

Cherwell: a great place to live
  cherwelldistrictcouncil  @cherwellcouncil   www.cherwell.gov.uk 

©
Pe

te
r 

G
re

en
w

ay



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

3

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

2

	 	

1.	 Foreword	 3	

4.	 Key achievements	 5

5. 	 Summary of pledges	 7

5. 	 Summary of our performance	 11

7.	 Getting in touch	 16

Contents

During the year the council has 
continued to deliver high quality 
services, new projects and innovations, 
whilst ensuring our customer 
satisfaction levels remained high.

We have continued proactive working 
with our partner South Northamptonshire 
Council in developing further shared 
working to provide resilience and to make 
savings so that the council is prepared for 
the future and any further government 
reduction in grants and revenues.

We have promoted economic growth; 
helping local companies to expand, 
securing high quality and high value jobs, 
with increased opportunities for all, and 
supporting more affordable homes for 
local people so that Cherwell District is 
a place where people want to live and 
work. We also work with partners to help 
deliver the right services and new projects 
for the District.

Our effective financial management has 
ensured we have balanced our budget 
and delivered no increase on the council 
element of Council Tax for 2016/17. 

Although this is an opportunity to look 
back on our achievements we are not 
standing still and are looking forward 
to this year 2016/17 with a refreshed 
annual business plan in place to take  
us on our journey. The 2016/17  
business plan can be found here  
www.cherwell.gov.uk/yourcouncil

Foreword 
Welcome to our Annual Report which provides an 
overview of the council’s performance and highlights 
our key achievements in 2015/16. 

Councillor Barry Wood

 
Leader of Cherwell District Council

Sue Smith 

Joint Chief Executive, Cherwell District  
and South Northamptonshire Councils

Local Plan was adopted in July 2015 
          200 hectares of new employment land and 22,800 houses
      Improved rail connections between Bicester, Oxford and London

                       Growing economy 
                                     Low levels of unemployment 

            1,083 jobs created or safeguarded
                             Extension of Begbroke Science Park
              New Technology Studio School in Bicester

         Employable Banbury workshop 
       ‘building bridges’ between businesses, educators and organisations 

Bicester designated as a Garden Town and an NHS England Healthy Town
                      The UKs largest self-build programme
                             322 affordable homes

Key Achievements at a glance



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

5

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

4

The Local Plan was adopted 
in July 2015 and the Development 
Framework for the District is in place 
concentrating growth on Bicester, 
Banbury and Upper Heyford. All the sites 
are coming forward to deliver 200 
hectares of new employment 
land and 22,800 houses.

The East West Rail line improved 
connections between Bicester, 
Oxford and London for commuters 
and business links.

The economy is growing and we 
are recording historical low levels of 
unemployment and through the Job 
Fairs the Economic Growth Team have 
seen large increases in local employment 
and company support. 

The Banbury Gateway opened with 
the 9th largest Marks and Spencer in 
the country with staff recruited 
through the Job Fairs. Considerable 
assistance has been provided to businesses 
recruiting local people. Tailored events 
provided to business needs through the 
job club and job fair services enabled 
the recruitment of over 1,000 staff: this 
supported a wide range of businesses 
across the district that required help to 
fill vacancies in manufacturing, logistics, 
retail, care, research and development 
and leisure. The full year saw 1,083 jobs 
created or safeguarded.

The new extension of Begbroke 
Science Park is under construction and 
is a major extension of Oxford University 
presence in Cherwell District.

Throughout the year, partnership plans 
have progressed well towards establishing 
a new Technology Studio School 
in Bicester, due to open in September 
2016. As part of the Brighter Futures in 
Banbury programme, skills issues have also 
been considered alongside matters relating 
to health, families and housing culminating 
on 18 March with the Council leading an 
Employable Banbury workshop, 
held at Banbury College and including 
Victoria Prentis MP. Particular emphasis 
was placed upon ‘building bridges’ 
between businesses, educators 
and organisations. Two apprentices 
from a local engineering company provided 
an impressive insight to the opportunities 
that are already available to young people.

Bicester/Graven Hill - We are proud 
of Bicester as a place, as a 
designated Garden Town, and as 
an NHS England Healthy Town, 
and we want a full range of housing 
choices. The easiest way to genuinely speed 
up delivery is to be in charge of it. There is 
an unmet demand for self build and custom 
build in this country, so the opportunity 
to purchase a brown field site from MoD 
was too good to miss. “Do it Yourself” has 
become our motto in every respect.

Build - From tackling run down empty 
properties in Banbury to the UKs 
largest self-build programme, 
over the last 5 years Cherwell has 
transformed its approach to affordable 
housing, development and building new 
communities by creating an innovative, 
sustainable and scalable housing model. 
During 2015/16 322 affordable 
homes were delivered in the District 
with 95 of these being self build 
housing projects.

Key achievements

In 2015/16 Cherwell District Council continued to work with the four strategic priorities.

Cherwell: a district  
of opportunity

Supporting economic development, employment, conservation, 
regeneration and development of the District. 

Cherwell: safe, green, 
clean 

Working to ensure the District has high standards of environmental 
cleanliness, great recycling and waste management, tackling crime 
and supporting energy efficiency. 

Cherwell: a thriving 
community

Providing affordable housing, leisure and sports facilities and activities.
Working with partners to improve access to health services. 
Providing arts, cultural and community services. 

Cherwell: sound  
budgets and customer 
focused council

Ensuring the council is run as efficiently as possible, consulting with 
local people, helping vulnerable people to access our services, and  
the provision of council tax and housing benefits.

Each year, from the key objectives and actions under 
our strategic priorities, several are highlighted as 
performance pledges. These pledges reflect local 
priorities and demonstrate our commitment to the 
delivery of important local services and new projects 
to help make Cherwell a great place to live. 

One year on, it’s time to reflect on our progress in 
delivering the 2015 -16 Business Plan. The next few 
pages highlight some of the achievements that the 
council, working with its partners has achieved.



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

7

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

6

Make progress onsite for the initial housing 
development at North West Bicester. 

 ��The first phase of development at NW Bicester, 
known as Elmsbrook, is nearing completion and is 
due for first occupations in late spring 2016. The 
phase includes a mix of housing including flats, 
terrace, semi detached and detached houses. 
The houses are a mix of tenures with affordable 
rented properties, shared ownership and market 
sale properties. In addition to housing, the first 
primary school is under construction and planning 
permission has been resolved to be granted for 
the local centre to serve the development. The 
development is achieving true zero carbon and very 
high standards of sustainability as required by the 
Local Plan policy Bic 1.

Make progress on site for the initial infrastructure at 
Graven Hill and promotion of the self-build plots. 

 �A new Managing Director was appointed in January 
2016 as we now push towards the implementation 
phase. Infrastructure works have commenced on 
the demonstrator project and the first self builders 
are due on site in June 2016 with phase 1A plots 
due for release in Summer 2016.

Commission and complete a commercial appraisal 
for Banbury town centre, and subsequently bring 
forward appropriate redevelopment proposals for 
urgent consideration. 

 �Business Improvement District bid: The tender to 
undertake the BID study, the essential first stage 
to creating a BID has been let and responses are 
awaited. The option of a BID has been discussed 
with the Chamber of Commerce and is referred to 
in the draft Banbury Masterplan.

 

 �Banbury Vision and Masterplan progress: The draft 
Masterplan has been published and completed 
a four week consultation. Responses are being 
compiled and assessed, with a view to considering 
what changes may be required to the draft 
Masterplan. The final Supplementary Planning 
Document is to be considered at Executive in July 
and adopted.

 �Hella Site: A viability assessment has been 
commissioned and completed. Officers have 
considered the report and have asked that the 
Canalside site phasing plan is completed to enable 
the Hella report to be considered in relation to 
how it might assist the relocation of companies 
from Canalside and so enable development land to 
become available at Canalside in a phased way.

Complete and implement the Masterplan for 
Kidlington, helping to develop a strong village 
centre. 

 �Consultation is underway on the Kidlington 
Masterplan.

Cherwell: a district  
of opportunity

Supporting economic development, employment, conservation, 
regeneration and development of the District. 

Cherwell District Council’s EcoBicester 
team, sustainability charity Bioregional 
and developers A2Dominion were 
jointly awarded the Green Apple 
Environment award for the Built 
Environment category. The Green Apple 
Environment awards have been taking 
place since 1994 to promote, recognise 
and reward schemes which promote 
environmental best practice across 
the world. The award recognised the 
organisations’ One Shared Vision initiative to 
extend the sustainability concept for 6,000 
true zero carbon homes at NW Bicester 
across the rest of the town.

Cherwell District and South 
Northamptonshire Councils jointly scooped 
the Team of the Year award at the 
national MRW Recycling Awards in July 2015 
for a joint campaign using social media to 
raise residents awareness of recycling.

At the 2015 national Local Authority 
Recycling Advisory Committee (LARAC) 
awards the Joint Recycling Officer was 
named Champion of the Year for his 
portfolio of successful recycling initiatives.

Cherwell District Council, along with partner 
Sainsbury’s, was nominated in the Primary 
Authority of the Year awards and 
received a ‘highly commended’ accolade 
after having been among the shortlisted 
finalists. “Primary Authority” is a scheme 
that aims to reduce burdens on business and 
encourage economic growth.

Cherwell District Council and sustainability 
charity Bioregional collectively took the 
Best Town/City award at the P. E. A. 
(People. Environment. Achievement) Awards 
which recognise efforts by individuals and 
organisations to support a green agenda. To 
take the accolade, Cherwell and Bioregional 
had to demonstrate measures which had 
been implemented to reduce the carbon 
footprint of the town. Bicester had been 
shortlisted for the award alongside other 
towns/cities including Bristol and Brighton 
but took the title for the work which 
had taken place to embed sustainable 
development throughout the entire town 
with designs that could be easily replicated 
by all local authorities.

Awards

Best Town/ 
City award

Team of the Year
Cherwell District & South 
Northamptoinshire Councils

Green Apple Environment award
MRW Team of the Year award 

Champion of the Year
Primary Authority of the Year

Best Town/ City award

Our performance pledges for 2015/16  
– a review 



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

9

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

8

Continue working with our partners to provide 
support to the most vulnerable individuals and 
families in the district, building on the Brighter 
Futures in Banbury programme. 

 �The second workshop for the Brighter Futures 
in Banbury programme involved a successful 
‘employability’ workshop in March 2016 which 
brought secondary and higher education together 
with local employers. A range of actions and 
initiatives were developed from this, which are now 
being considered. 

Deliver 150 units of affordable homes in the 
District and support opportunities for self-build and 
developing self-build skills.

 �The year overall has been positive with new 
opportunities identified as well as established sites 
progressed to a position which will enable new 
affordable housing to be delivered in the district 
under the Council’s Build! banner. A total of 322 
affordable homes were delivered within the District 
during the year, significantly exceeding target.

Continue to support skills development, 
apprenticeships and job clubs in order to help 
support local employment and reduce the number 
of young people not in education, employment or 
training.

 �In March 2016, the Council led an Employable 
Banbury workshop as part of the Brighter Futures in 
Banbury programme, held at Banbury College and 
including Victoria Prentis MP. Particular emphasis 
was placed upon ‘building bridges’ between 
businesses, educators and organisations. Two 
apprentices from a local engineering company 
provided an impressive insight to the opportunities 
that are already available to young people. 
Discussions enabled further links to be established 

between businesses, for instance in the promotion 
of the science, technology, engineering and maths 
(STEM) subjects. An action plan is being developed 
and further workshops are being planned to address 
related issues such as housing affordability. 

 �March also featured the National Apprenticeship 
week, with specialist events held at North 
Oxfordshire Academy and other venues across 
Cherwell. Day-to-day liaison with businesses by the 
Economic Growth team also provided referrals into 
the Oxfordshire Apprenticeship Services.

 �The Brighter Futures in Banbury programme is also 
providing a grant of £10,000 to Ethnic Minority 
Business Service to allow the continuation of 
guidance for long-term unemployed people.

 �Job clubs and job fairs were provided in Banbury 
and Bicester, with over 2,000 visits made during the 
year. This included six job fairs being held (Banbury 
& Bicester) in addition to weekly job clubs. All age 
groups are helped as well as assisting people that 
were already in employment to change careers. 
The Job Club partnership links have also promoted 
apprenticeships and traineeships to businesses as 
a practical means of engaging young people and 
supporting them in their career paths.

Cherwell: safe, green, 
clean 

Working to ensure the District has high standards of environmental 
cleanliness, great recycling and waste management, tackling crime 
and supporting energy efficiency. 

Maintain the District’s high recycling rate. 

 �The target has been missed and the provisional 
figures show 55.78% v target of 57%. Composting is 
down this year which affects the tonnage collected. 
However overall the amount sent to landfill is less 
than last year and most of the waste that cannot 
be recycled is sent to the Energy Recovery Facility. 
1,557 blue bins have been delivered to customers 
this year encouraging more recycling.

Improve local residents’ satisfaction with street and 
environmental cleanliness continuing our successful 
programme of neighbourhood litter blitzes. 

 �All six of the planned Neighbourhood Blitz events 
have been completed. They all proved to be very 
popular with members of the public and Councillors 
alike. We also supported Banbury Town Council in 
the Clean for the Queen initiatives, which involved 
staff, members of the public, and local Councillors. 
The satisfaction survey in 2015 showed 69% of 
respondents were satisfied with the level of street 
cleanliness, a slight increase on the previous year 
and 75% were satisfied with the care of parks and 
open spaces.

Work with the local police and licence holders to 
ensure our town centres remain safe and vibrant in 
the evenings.

 �There has been no appreciable increase in night 
time violence in the towns and the numbers of 
exclusions from the towns have fallen. This indicates 
that generally licensees are managing responsibly 
and co-operating with the police.

Cherwell: a thriving 
community

Providing affordable housing, leisure and sports facilities and activities, 
working with partners to improve access to health services , providing 
arts, cultural and community services. 

Our performance pledges for 2015/16 – a review Our performance pledges for 2015/16 – a review 



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

11

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

10

Continue to improve our website, and implement 
additional online services for customers and 
maintain the SOCITM rating of 3/4 stars.

 ��The website has been maintained on an on-going 
basis, although development has been staid as there 
are plans to move to a new single platform. Work 
on this was placed ‘on hold’ whilst discussions were 
on-going about the future working with Stratford. 
This will be addressed in 2016/17.

Extend the Joint Working Programme to include 
new methods of service delivery and more services 
delivered in partnership.

 ��Significant progress has been made over the year 
with Business Cases agreed for Economic Growth, 
Communications, Environmental Health & Public 
Protection and Customer Service, Revenues and 
Benefits (subject to consultation) Leisure and 
Community (subject to consultation). Options are 
under development for Housing and Planning. The 
joint programme is designed to provide resilience 
and savings to the council.

Cherwell: sound  
budgets and customer 
focused council

Ensuring the council is run as efficiently as possible, consulting with 
local people, helping vulnerable people to access our services, and  
the provision of council tax and housing benefits.

A summary of our performance: Our performance pledges for 2015/16 – a review 

Summary of our performance

The table below summarises the progress we have made delivering against the activities, task and projects 
outlined in our business plan under each of the four strategic priorities. 

We use a ‘RAGG*’ (red, amber, green, green*) system where green* refers to a target that has been over 
achieved, green to a target wholly met, amber to a target narrowly missed and red to a target missed by 10%. 

0

10

2

0

Please see the accompanying Appendices for full details on the progress in 2015/16 

Grimsbury Connecting Community Event: 

Have Faith in Community

•   Part of the Inter Faith Week celebration, bringing the community together 
•   Help and information from the Citizen Advice Bureau 
•   Advice from Cherwell District Council on benefits, housing and private tenancies
•   Information from Oxfordshire Mind on the service they offer

•   Learn how you can support your local community through volunteering opportunities
•   Report graffiti and litter hotspots in your area and book FREE bulky waste collections 
•   Learn how save money with Love Food and Hate Waste

21 November 2015 10am - 4pm Grimsbury Community Centre FREE event!

Celebrate and discover what your diverse community has to offer

Free information, advice and support,   Food and drink, fun for all.www.interfaithweek.org

Organised by Cherwell District Council

Community Engagement

A Connecting Community Event “Have Faith in Community” was held 
during Inter Faith Week (15 – 21 November 2015) providing information 
regarding the community services offered by the District, the County and 
the voluntary groups in and around Banbury. The ambitious event linked the 
Faith Forum and Connecting Communities with over 70 people attending. 
The Give or Take and Radio Horton really helped to bring people forward 
and it was a joint effort to encourage participation. 

1

21

3

2

% summary

9.5%

70.4%

16.5%

3.4%

1

7

8

2

Sa
fe

 G
re

en
 a

nd
 C

le
an

  
To

ta
l n

o.
 o

f m
ea

su
re

s 
1

8

0

22

6

0

D
is

tr
ic

t 
of

 O
p

p
or

tu
ni

ty
 

To
ta

l n
o.

 o
f m

ea
su

re
s 

2
8

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
le

d
g

es
 

To
ta

l n
o.

 o
f m

ea
su

re
s 

1
2

9

31

2

0

Th
ri

vi
ng

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
  

To
ta

l n
o.

 o
f m

ea
su

re
s 

4
2

So
un

d
 b

ud
g

et
s 

an
d

 
cu

st
om

er
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 c

ou
nc

il 
  

To
ta

l n
o.

 o
f m

ea
su

re
s 

2
7

End of year 2015/16 summary outturn

To
ta

l n
o.

 o
f m

ea
su

re
s 1

15



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

13

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

12

Customer Contact and Feedback 

Every year since 2006 Cherwell District Council  
has undertaken a customer satisfaction survey.  
In 2015 the survey was carried out between  
May and July revealing that 79% of residents  
are satisfied with the council’s performance;  
the highest level of satisfaction since the survey  
began and the fourth year running that  
satisfaction has increased.

As a place to live Cherwell is at its highest 
satisfaction level at 88%.

Street cleaning services scored 69%, the best ever.

Perceptions of value for money offered by the 
council reached 55%, highest score to date.

Full details of the satisfaction survey can be found at 
www.cherwell.gov.uk/satisfactionsurvey.

This is the highest rating 
of satisfaction recorded since the 

survey began. 

        Percentage of people  

        satisfied with the  
        services’ provided by  

Cherwell District Council

No of complaints 
received

No of valid 
complaints

No of complaints 
escalated to Stage 
2

Percentage 
acknowledged in 3 
working days

Percentage 
responded to in 10 
working days

261 129 43 90.04% 79.31%

Complaints Summary

The figures regarding the 10 working day response time do not include the number of complaints that received 
agreed extension dates as per the policy. During 2016/2017 new reporting functions will enable reporting on the 
number of complaints to receive extension requests which will provide a more accurate figure for the adherence to 
the policy.

No of Ombudsman
Complaints 
received

No of valid 
complaints

No of complaints 
escalated to Stage 
2

Percentage 
acknowledged in 3 
working days

Percentage 
responded to in 10 
working days

tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc

Ombudsman summary 

Apr – June July – Sept Oct - Dec Jan – March Year Total

136 111 109 138 494

Freedom of information requests 
Number of requests received during 2015/16:



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

Cherwell: a great place to live
  cherwelldistrictcouncil  @cherwellcouncil   www.cherwell.gov.uk 

Throughout the year the council provides 
opportunities for local people to have their say. 
Whether this be through customer satisfaction 
surveys, budget consultation, consultation on new 
projects and services, talking to local business 
organisations or feedback via our link-points or 
web site we are keen to listen to what you like and 
what needs to be improved. Our consultations 
are published on our one-stop consultation portal 
which can be found at: 

http://consult.cherwell.gov.uk/portal/

However, if you would like to feedback about any 
other matter you can do so using the contact 
details on this page. 

Email: consultation@cherwell-dc.gov.uk

To find and email your ward councillor:  
http://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/mgFindCouncillor.aspx

Call the Performance and Insight Team:  
01295 221605

Customer Services: 01295 227001

Write: 
The Performance and Insight Team 
Bodicote House 
Bodicote 
Banbury 
Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA

For general enquiries visit www.cherwell.gov.uk  
or contact the customer service team  
01295 227001. 

Getting in touch 

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16



Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

16

Cherwell District Council – Annual Performance Report 2015 -16

15



Cherwell: a great place to live
  cherwelldistrictcouncil @cherwellcouncil   www.cherwell.gov.uk 

Business Plan 2016-17



Cherwell: a great place to live
  cherwelldistrictcouncil  @cherwellcouncil   www.cherwell.gov.uk 

Cherwell:  
a district of  
opportunity

Cherwell:  
safe, green,  

clean 
Cherwell:  
a thriving  

community

Cherwell:  
sound budgets  
and customer  

focused council

Business Plan 2016-17





Cherwell District Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 

31 May 2016 
 

Work Programme 2016/17 

 
Report of Head of Law and Governance 

 
This report is public 

 
 

Purpose of report 
 
To consider the outstanding items from the 2015-2016 Overview and Scrutiny work 
programme and determine whether they should be carried forward onto the 2016-
2017 work programme 

 
 
1.0 Recommendations 
              

The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To decide whether to continue with the reviews started during the previous 

Municipal Year  
 

1.2 To review the draft work programme (Appendix 1). 
 

1.3 Identify any items from the Executive Work Programme to form part of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2016/17. 
 

1.4 Identify any other possible future topics for scrutiny and consider whether these 
topics should have scoping documents produced, based on the considerations of 
risk and what value scrutiny can add through considering the issue. 
 

1.5 To give consideration to the start time of future meetings being changed to 6:45pm, 
as per the request of the Committee Chairman.  

 
 

2.0 Introduction 
 

2.1 As this is the first meeting of the new Municipal Year, it is a good time to review the 
whole work programme. At each subsequent meeting the Committee will be 
required to review and amend the Work Plan as necessary. 
 
 
 

 



3.0 Report Details 
 

 Update on current Scrutiny review 
 
 Youth Engagement Review 
3.1 The Youth Engagement Review was established in October 2014, and a scoping 

document was signed off by the Committee. Councillors Bryn Williams and Neil 
Prestidge were appointed to the working group, along with Councillor Dan Sames. 
Councillor Sames left the Committee in 2015. 

 
3.2 At the meeting in April 2016, the Group updated the Committee on progress of the 

review (item 61 relates) 
 
3.3 If the Committee agree to the continuation of the review, an end of review report 

date will need to be scheduled. 
 

Performance Monitoring 
3.4 As discussed at agenda item 7, the Committee receives performance monitoring 

data each quarter which details how the Council is performing against agreed 
measures. The Committee have the opportunity to refer any areas of concern to 
Cabinet for further discussion, or to request officer attendance to discuss issues in 
more detail.  

 
3.5 Indicative dates for consideration of performance information are included on the 

draft work programme.  
 

Executive Work Programme 
3.6      As part of the monthly work programme report, the Committee reviews the 

Executive Work Programme to consider whether there are any issues which they 
would wish to look at in more detail in advance of the Executive discussion and 
decision.  To facilitate a thorough consideration of the topic the Committee will need 
to identify the Executive Work Programme items at an early stage of the decision 
making process. 

 
3.7     The Executive Work Programme is updated and published monthly; an electronic 

copy is available on the council’s website and all councillors are sent a prompt 
containing the website link.  Members of the Committee are encouraged to review 
the Executive Work Programme outside the committee meetings and to contact the 
Chairman, Vice-Chairman or Democratic Services Officer if there is a topic that they 
wish to review. 

 
3.8     The Committee will wish to note any items of interest in the current version of the 

Executive Work Programme and consider whether to include them on the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2016/17. 

3.9   At the time of writing this report, the current version of the Executive Work 
Programme is June to September 2016 and can be found on the following page of 
the website: Cherwell Forward Plan 

 
 

Future meetings Schedule 

http://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=2623&Ver=4
http://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=2623&Ver=4
http://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=115&RD=0


3.10   The meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 2016-2017 Municipal 
Year are listed below: 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

2016/17 
31 May 2016, 6:30pm 
12 July, 6:30pm 
6 September, 6:30pm 
11 October, 6:30pm 
22 November, 6:30pm 
10 January 2017, 6:30pm 
21 February, 6:30pm 
4 April, 6:30pm 

  
 Start time of the meetings  
3.10 The Chairman has requested that the Committee give consideration to the start time 

of future meetings being changed from 6:30pm to 6:45pm, due to his work 
commitments. This change in time would allow the Chairman to be briefed by 
officers before the meeting commences. 

 
 

4.0 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 
 
4.1 The recommendations as set out in the report are believed to be in the best 

interests of the Council. 
 
 

5.0 Consultation 
 

None  
 
 

6.0 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
6.1 The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons 

as set out below.  
 

Option 1: To agree the recommendations as set out in the report. 
 
Option 2: To amend the recommendations. 

 
Option 3: Not to agree the recommendations.  

 
 

7.0 Implications 
 
 Financial and Resource Implications 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The report of the 

individual scrutiny reviews will address any specific legal issue. 
 
 
 Comments checked by: 



Paul Sutton, Chief Finance Officer, 0300 003 0106, 
paul.sutton@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

  
Legal Implications 

 
7.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.  The report of the 

individual scrutiny reviews will address any specific financial issues. 
 
 Comments checked by: James Doble, Democratic and Elections Manager,  

01295 221587, james.doble@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 
 

Risk Management 
  
7.3 If too many items are included on the work programme there is a risk that scrutiny 

agenda become overloaded. This undermines effective scrutiny because Members 
are unable to concentrate on the key issues and officer resources are over-
stretched. It may be necessary to hold further meetings during the year if the risk of 
not achieving the work programme becomes apparent. The reports of the individual 
scrutiny reviews will address any specific risk issues.  

 
Comments checked by: James Doble, Democratic and Elections Manager,  
01295 221587, james.doble@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 
 
   

8.0 Decision Information 
 

           Wards Affected 
 

Each scrutiny review will identify the wards affected. 
 
Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework 

 
Each Scrutiny Review will identify the relevant Corporate Plan and Policy framework 
links.  

 
Lead Councillor 

 
None 

 

Document Information 
Appendix No Title 

1 Draft Work Programme for 2016-17 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Emma Faulkner, Democratic and Elections Officer 

Contact 
Information 

Tel: 01327 322043 

emma.faulkner@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  

 

mailto:emma.faulkner@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Draft Work Programme - 2016/2017 
 

Item Description Reason for Consideration  Contact Officer 

31 May 2016 
 

Performance Report 2015-
16 Quarter 4/End of Year  

Performance data and if necessary 
officer attendance for each quarter 

To flag any issues before 
consideration by Executive 

Ed Bailey, Corporate 
Performance Manager 
 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal year  

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

12 July 2016 
 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal Year 

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

6 September 2016 
 

Performance Report 2016-
17 Quarter 1 (1 April to 30 
June) 
 

Performance data and if necessary 
officer attendance for each quarter 

To flag any issues before 
consideration by Executive 

Ed Bailey, Corporate 
Performance Manager 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal Year 

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

11 October 2016 
 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal Year 

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

 



Appendix 1 
 

Item Description Reason for Consideration  Contact Officer 

22 November 2016 
 

Annual Safeguarding Report Update on Safeguarding activities 
and progress ahead of Section 11 
Audit return 

Committee resolution January 2016 Nicola Riley, Interim 
Shared Community 
Partnerships and 
Recreation Manager 

Performance Report 2016-
17 Quarter 2 (1 July to 30 
September) 

Performance data and if necessary 
officer attendance for each quarter 

To flag any issues before 
consideration by Executive 

Ed Bailey, Corporate 
Performance Manager 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal Year 

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

10 January 2017 
 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal Year 

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

    

21 February 2017 
 

Performance Report 2016-
17 Quarter 3 (1 October to 
31 December) 

Performance data and if necessary 
officer attendance for each quarter 

To flag any issues before 
consideration by Executive 

Ed Bailey, Corporate 
Performance Manager 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal Year 

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

4 April 2017 
 

Draft Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report 2016/17 

To consider the draft Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 

Constitutional requirement to submit 
an annual report to Council 

Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 



Appendix 1 
 

Item Description Reason for Consideration  Contact Officer 

prior to submission to Council Officer 

Committee Work Plan To review the work plan for the 
Municipal Year 

Standing item Emma Faulkner, 
Democratic and Elections 
Officer 

Items to be allocated 
 

Draft Business Plan 2017/18 Consideration of key objectives for 
2017-18 

To consider draft plan ahead of 
consideration by Council 

Ed Bailey, Corporate 
Performance Manager 

 




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	7 Performance Management Framework 2015/16 Quarter 4/Year End Report
	Appendix 1
	CDC Q4 Appendix 1 - Business Plan
	CDC Q4 Appendix 2 - Corporate Equalities
	CDC Q4 Appendix 3 - Partnerships

	Appendix 2

	8 Committee Work Programme
	Work Programme - Appendix 1


